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TOWN OF MANSFIELD
OFFICE OF THE FINANCE DIRECTOR

JEFFREY H. SMITH, Director of Finance AUDREY P, BECK BUILDING
FOUR SOUTH EAGLEVILLE ROAD
MANSFIELD, CT 06268-2599
(860) 429-3343
Fax: (860) 429-6863

E-Mail: smithih@mansfieldet.org

November 16, 2005

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Town Council, and Citizens of the Town of Mansfield,
Connecticut:

State law requires that all local governments publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year, a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report of the Town of Mansfield for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of Mansfield.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the Town has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the Town’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of Mansfield’s financial statements have been audited by Kostin, Ruffkess & Company, LLC,
a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, are
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering unqualified opinions that the Town’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2005, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.



The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town was part of a broader, federally and state
mandated “Single Audits” designed to meet the special needs of federal and state grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditors to report not only on the
fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited Town’s internal conirols and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements
involving the administration of federal and state awards. These reports are available as part of this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The Town’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Town of Mansfield

The Town of Mansfield encompasses approximately 45.1 square miles. The Town is bounded on the east
by Chaplin, on the north by Willington and Ashford, on the south by Windham, Lebanon, and Columbia,
and on the west by Coventry. The Town of Mansfield was first settled in 1692 as part of Windham. In
October 1702, the Connecticut General Assembly granted a charter of incorporation to the Town of
Mansfield which was formed out of Windham.

The Town operates under the provisions of its Charter and the General Statutes of the State of
Connecticut. Since 1970, when the Town established the Town Manager/Council form of government,
the legislative power of the Town was vested in a nine-member council, elected at large for terms of two
years, and the Town Meeting. The Mayor is elected by majority vote of the council. The Town Manager,
who is the chief executive officer, manages the operations of the Town.

The Town and the immediate region is the beneficiary of the University of Connecticut being located in
Mansfield. The University is a land grant University that was founded in 1881 as Storrs Agricultural
School. With over 5,000 employees, the University is a major employer for the Town and the
surrounding region.

Since 1990, the Town has expended in excess of the $2.5 million to acquire open space land. During this
period the Town has purchased twenty-seven properties totaling over 743 acres of land. The Town
currently owns over 1,900 acres of open space land exclusive of schools and other municipal facilities.

The Town of Mansfield provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; education pre-kindergarten
through eighth grade and high school through the Regional School District No. 19; social services
including a day care center, a youth service bureau and a senior center; public health services through the
Eastern Highlands Health District; recreation services and adult education including a new community
center; library services in a library building which was recently renovated; and affordable housing
through a Town housing authority.

The Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. is financially accountable to the Town since the Town Council has
approval authority over budget increases in excess of $10,000 and, therefore, is shown as a discretely-
presented component unit in the Town’s financial statements. The agency appoints its own board, of which
two of the members are also members of the Town Council. Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. accounts for
federal and state funds, local contributions and participants’ fees for the operation of a child day care center.



Budget Policies

The procedures for establishing the budgetary data reported in the financial statements are as follows:

1.

The Town legally adopts an annual budget for the General Fund and Capital Nonrecurring
Special Revenue Fund. Formal budgetary integration is employed by the Town Council as a
management control device during the year for the General Fund. A budgetary comparison on a
legal basis has been included in the appropriate financial statements and schedules, and budgetary
to GAAP reporting reconciliations have been provided in Note II. B., Budget to GAAP
Reconciliation.

The Capital Projects Fund employs a project length budget, which is approved by the Annual
Town Meeting.

Prior to March 1, each department head, office, agency, board or commission of the Town,
supported wholly or in part from Town funds, shall submit budget requests in the form requested
by the Town Manager so as to indicate the programs, activities, and work accomplished in the
current fiscal year and to be accomplished during the ensuing year. These shall be accompanied
by detailed estimates of expenditures to be made and of revenues other than taxes to be collected
during the ensuing fiscal year, along with such other information as may be requested by the
Council or the Manager.

3. Priorto April 1, the Town Manager shall present to the Council a budget consisting of:

a. a budget message outlining the financial situation of the Town government and
describing the important features of the budget plan;

b. the budget of the Board of Education as submitted to the Manager, along with whatever
analysis or comments the Manager wishes to provide;

c. statements of the Manager’s proposed operating program and expenditures for the Town
functions and Town-supported functions, other than those of the Board of Education,
along with comparisons of amounts expended in the last completed fiscal year and
estimated amounts to be expended in the current fiscal year;

d. information on amounts of revenue, other than property taxes, collected by source, in the
last completed fiscal year, estimates for the current and for the ensuing year, along with
information and estimates regarding property tax revenues for the same periods;

¢. statements of the condition and estimated condition of the Town funds and of the debt
service obligations of the Town, proposed capital improvements to be undertaken during
the ensuing fiscal year or later years, and the proposed methods of financing them; and

f. such other information as will assist the Council and the Town Meeting in deciding on an
annual appropriation and a capital improvements program.

The Council shall hold at least one public hearing on the budget during the month of April and
shall adopt a proposed budget, including a recommended appropriation act, by May 1, which
shall be published in a newspaper in general circulation in the Town at least five days prior to the
annual Town Meeting for budgeting consideration.



Budget Policies (continued)

3. An annual Town Meeting for budget consideration shall be held on the second Tuesday in May.
This meeting shall consider the budget presented to it by the Council and may approve or lower
any item, but may not raise the amount of such item. If the annual Town Meeting fails to adopt a
budget, the budget will be returned to the Council for its consideration. The council shall return
the same or a revised budget to a Town Meeting called by the Council for a date no later than ten
days after the annual meeting, at which the Town Meeting may approve or lower any item.
Should the Town Meeting then fail or refuse to adopt a budget, the budget appropriation last
proposed by the Council shall be in full effect.

Economic Condition and Qutlook

Because Mansfield is the home of the University of Connecticut, our local economy tends to remain more
stable than other areas in the State and Nation. Property tax collections over the last ten years have
averaged 98 percent. Mansfield is less impacted by general economic conditions, and there is no reason
to believe that will change any time in the immediate future.

With this said, Mansfield is also far more dependent upon State grants to pay for the costs of operating
our Town than most other communities in Connecticut. This tends to result in a feast or famine scenario.
‘When times are good and State tax coffers are full, Mansfield does very well, but when times turn down,
so do our State grants. For example, during FY 2003/04, we were notified by the Governor’s Office that
many of our State grants would be cut by approximately 5 percent, resulting in a loss of approximately
$200,000. In the current FY 2005/06, our State PILOT payment (Payments-in-Lieu of Taxes) was
$553,084 more than the adopted budget.

Cash Management

Cash temporarily idle during the fiscal year was invested in the State of Connecticut Short Term
Investment Fund (STIF) or money market accounts. Cash available for long-term investment was
invested in various equity mutual funds, bond funds and U.S. Treasury notes. General Fund investment
income amounted to $173,845 in 2005, compared to $111,612 in 2004, mainly due to increasing interest
rates.

Risk Management

The Town entered into a contract with a local consultant to provide the Town with risk management
services. The services of the consultant are also shared with the Mansfield Board of Education and
Region No. 19 Board of Education. The two Boards and the Town also share the costs for a risk
management assistant (a Town employee) to assist the consultant in carrying out the risk management
program. All risk management activities for both Boards of Education and the Town are centered with the
risk management assistant.

An Executive Safety Committee, comprised of the two Superintendents, the Town Manager, the Finance
Director, and the Risk Management Assistant, meets periodically. That Committee’s primary
responsibility is to set policy for risk management activities for the ensuing six months and to review and
act upon critical risk management matters, as needed.

The Risk Management Assistant has provided guidance to Department Heads and Building Supervisors in
establishing safety committees. The committees meet periodically to implement decisions made by the
Executive Safety Committee and act upon risk management matters, as needed.



Pension Plan

All Town employees participate in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS). MERS is the
administrator of a cost-sharing, municipal employer public employee retirement system (PERS)
established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State Retirement Commission to provide
pension benefits for the employees of participating municipalities. MERS is considered to be a part of the
State of Connecticut’s financial reporting entity and is included in the State’s financial reports as a
pension trust fund. MERS issues a publicly available financial report, which may be obtained by writing
to the State of Connecticut Retirement and Benefit Services Division, Office of the State Comptroller, 55
Elm Street, Hartford, CT 06106.

Plan provisions are set by Statute of the State of Connecticut. MERS provides retirement benefits, as well
as death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after 5 years of continuous service. Members who retire
after age 55 with 5 years of service or after 25 years of service, irrespective of age, are entitled to an
annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Mansfield for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. In order to be awarded
a certificate of achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which conform to program standards.
Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid only for the fiscal year
awarded. We believe our current report continues to conform to the program requirements, and is being
submitted to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgement

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. I would like to express my appreciation
to all members of the department who assisted in its preparation. I would also like to thank the members
of the Town Council and the Mansfield Board of Education for their interest and support in planning and
conducting the financial operations of the Town in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey H. Smith
Director of Finance



FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS

PREFACE

The Fiscal Performance Goals adopted by the Town Council on March 9, 1987, as amended November 25, 1996,
represent an effort to establish written policies for guiding the Town’s financial management practices. These
goals are not intended in any way to limit the authority of the Council to act, but rather to form a framework
within which to make financial decisions and fo monitor financial activity in a consistent manner. The adoption of
these goals will not restrict the Town Council’s ability and responsibility to respond to emergency or service
delivery needs above or beyond the suggested limitations herein established.

FINANCIAL REPORTING PERFORMANCE GOALS

e A policy of full and open disclosure of all financial activity will be adhered to.
» Records will be maintained on a basis consistent with accepted government accounting standards.

¢ The Director of Finance will prepare monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports, presenting a summary
of financial activity by major types of funds and programs.

e The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will be prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and governmental financial reporting practices.

e An independent public accounting firm will be employed to perform an annual audit of all funds,
authorities, agencies and grant programs, and the annual audited report will be made available to the
general public, bond and financial consultants, and other interested citizens and organizations. The audit
will be completed and submitted to the Town Council within one hundred fifty (150) days of the close of
the Town’s fiscal vear.,

RESERVE PERFORMANCE GOALS

* A contingency account will be established annually in the operating budget to:
a. provide for settlement of pending labor contract negotiations;
b. provide for temporary funding of unforeseen needs of an emergency or nonrecurring nature;

c. permit orderly budgetary adjustments when revenues are lost through the action of other governmental
bodies;

d. provide the local match for public or private grants; and
e. meet unexpected small increases in service delivery costs.

» The contingency account will be budgeted at a level sufficient to provide for settlement of pending labor
contract negotiations plus an amount not to exceed one percent (0.5%) of the proposed Town budget. The

Town’s budget will be amended at the time such contingency funds are committed. The contingency
account will be separate from the carryover fund balance,



FUND BALANCE GOALS

A year-to-year carryover fund balance will be maintained in an amount necessary to maintain adequate
cash flow and to prevent the demand for short-term borrowing. The undesignated fund balance should be
at least three percent (3%) of the general fund operating budget and shall be separate from the contingency
account. Fund balance in excess of the three percent goal should be used for balancing the proposed
operating tax budget in the succeeding fiscal year.

Increase the undesignated fund balance from three percent of the general fund operating budget to five
percent.

Establish a policy not to use fund balance as a source of financing future years operating budgets.

Transfer any fund balance in excess of five percent to the CNR Fund for one-time expenditures.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PERFORMANCE GOALS

Capital improvements will be based on long-range projected needs rather than on immediate needs, in order
to minimize future maintenance, replacement and capital costs.

All capital improvements should be made in accordance with the Town’s five-year capital improvements
program. The capital improvements program shall be revised annually.

The development of the capital improvements program will be coordinated with the operating budget in
order to maintain a reasonably stable total tax levy.

Before submission to the Town Council, the Town Manager will identify the estimated cost and potential
funding sources for each capital project proposed. Future operating costs associated with a proposed
capital improvement will be estimated before a decision is made to implement a project.

Federal, State and other intergovernmental and private funding sources will be sought out and used as
available to assist in financing capital improvements.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

A cash flow analysis of all funds will be developed on a regular basis. Collections, deposits and
disbursements of all funds will be scheduled in a way as to ensure maximum cash availability.

Where permitted by law, cash from separate funds and sources will be pooled to maximize investment
yields. Interest will be credited to the General Fund except where prohibited by law or where the source of
the cash is from an individual or corporation to ensure performance. Interest will be credited to the Capital
and Nonrecurring Expenditure Fund (CNR) on cash held in the CNR Fund and the Capital Fund. The
interest income will be used for future capital projects or debt service.

Investment policy will be consistent with State law and will provide for security of principal as well as
needed liquidity.



DEBT PERFORMANCE GOALS

Long-term debt will be limited to those capital improvements that should not be financed from current
revenues.

The maturity date for any debt will not exceed the reasonably expected useful life of the project so
financed.

The total direct general obligation debt will not exceed three percent (3%) of the full assessment value of
taxable property.

As a means of further minimizing the impact of debt obligations of the taxpayers:
a. long-term net debt will not exceed $500 per capita; and

b. these limitations will not apply to any debt incurred for emergency purposes.
The issuance of bond, tax and revenue anticipation notes will be avoided.

Special assessments, revenue bonds and/or any other available self-liquidating debt measures will be used
instead of general obligation bonds where and when possible and applicable.

An official statement will be prepared to be used in connection with all sales of bonds and notes.

Good relations will be maintained with financial and bond rating agencies, and a policy of full and open
disclosure on every financial report and bond prospectus will be followed.

OPERATING EXPENDITURES PERFORMANCE GOALS

The Town Manager will propose and the Town Council will adopt and maintain a balanced budget in
which expenditures will not be allowed to exceed reasonable estimated resources and revenues.

All current operation and maintenance expenses will be paid from the current revenue sources.

The operating budget will provide for the adequate maintenance of capital assets and equipment.

The budget will provide for adequate funding of all employee benefit programs and retirement systems.

A budgetary control system will be maintained to enable adherence to the adopted budget. This will
include a record keeping system to be adhered to by all programs and activities receiving annual Town

Council appropriations.

A system of regular monthly fiscal reports comparing actual revenues and expenditures to budgeted
amounts will be prepared and maintained.

An effective risk management program to minimize loss and reduce costs will be developed and
implemented. The Town Manager will ensure that adequate insurance programs are in place, including
unemployment and workers’ compensation insurance.



OPERATING EXPENDITURES PERFORMANCE GOALS (CONTINUED)

Delivery of services by other public and private organizations will be encouraged whenever and wherever
greater efficiency and effectiveness can be expected. Technology and productivity advancements that will
help reduce or avoid increasing personnel costs as a proportion of the total budget, that use available
resources more productively and creatively, and that avoid duplication of effort and resources will be
utilized.

A Reserve Fund for Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures will be maintained and will be adequately
funded each year by a transfer from the General Fund Budget and by unanticipated one time revenues.

REVENUE PERFORMANCE GOALS

A diversified and stable revenue system will be maintained as protection from short-run fluctuations.

Annual revenues will be estimated on an objective and reasonable basis. The Town Manager will develop
a method to project revenues on a multi-year basis.

One time or special purpose revenues will be used only for capital expenditures or for expenditures
required by the revenues and not to subsidize recurring personnel, operation or maintenance costs.

All user charges and fees will be annually re-evaluated at a level related to the cost of providing the
services.

Appropriate expansion and diversification of the tax base will be encouraged and additional Federal and
State revenues will be sought in order to reduce the reliance on the property tax as it affects individual
homeowners.



TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
LIST OF PRINCIPATL, OFFICIALS

Town Couneil

Elizabeth Paterson, Mayor
Greg Haddad, Deputy Mayor
Alison Whitham Blair
Bruce Clouette
Alan Hawkins
Helen Koehn
Christopher Paulhus
Caroline Redding
Carl Schaefer

Martin H. Berliner
Town Manager

Matthew W. Hart
Assistant Town Manager

Jeffrey H. Smith
Director of Finance

Cheryl A. Trahan
Controller/Treasurer

Irene La Pointe
Assessor

Christine Gamache
Collector of Revenue

Jo-Anne Roberts
Information Technology Manager
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- Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
1n Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Town of Mansfield,
Connecticut

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2004

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

Bty .

Executive Director
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Pond View Corporate Center

OSTIN 76 Batterson Park Road
3 Farmington * New London . Farmington, CT 06032
R Springfield, MA :
UFFKESS ) Main Line:  {860) 678-6000
' (800)286-KRCO

Tol Free:

& COMPANY, LIC I Fax: (860) 678-6 110

Business Advisors and Certified Public Accountants . Web: www.kostin.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Town Council
Town of Mansfield, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the agpregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic
financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, as
of June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 16, 2005,
on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regnlations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 15 through 23 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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& COMPANY, LLC

November 16, 2005
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the
accompanying financial information listed as supplemental schedules in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of contents have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Farmington, Connecticut
November 16, 2005
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD

OFFICE OF THE FINANCE DIRECTOR

JEFFREY H. SMITH, Director of Finance AUDREY P. BECK BUILDING
FOUR SOUTH EAGLEVILLE ROAD
MANSFIELD, CT 06268-2599
(860) 429-3343
Fax: (860) 429-6863

E-Mail: gmithih@mansfieldet.org

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

As management of the Town of Mansfield, we offer readers of the Town of Mansfield’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that
we have furnished in our letter of transmittal in the introductory section of this report.

Financial Highlights

. The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $68,142,317
(net assets). Of this amount, $777,952 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing
obligations {o citizens and creditors.

. The Town’s total net assets increased by $1,647,958. The significant contributors to this was positive
operations in the General Fund ($552,022) and significant tax collections received in the prior year but
earned in the current year.

. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $4,967,764, an increase of $144,702 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 27.3%
of this total amount, $1,355,466, is available for spending at the Town’s discretion (unreserved fund
balance).

. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $1,568,102 or 4.5%
of total general fund expenditures.

. The Town’s total long-term obligations decreased by $1,624,095 during the current fiscal year. The key
factors in this decrease were principal payments on bonded debt of $980,000, an early retirement incentive
decrease of $210,437 and a $560,792 decrease in accrued compensated absences and a $109,714 increase
in post employee benefit obligation.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Mansfield’s basic financial
statements. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
15



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-fype activities). The
governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, public works, community
services, community development, and education. The business-type activities of the Town include a sewer
operation and a transfer station operation.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the Town itself (known as the primary government),
but also a legally separate day care agency (Mansfield Discovery Depot) for which the Town is financially
accountable. Financial information for the day care agency is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A and B of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounis that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities. or objectives. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 14 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, Mansfield discretionary fund and the capital projects fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other 11 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements (continued)

The Town adopts an annual budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget (Exhibit F).

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C and D.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Town uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer operations and for its solid waste operations. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town's various
functions.

The Town uses internal service funds to account for its self-insured medical benefits, workers’ compensation
benefits, the providing of voice and data communications, and printing and mailing services. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer fund (a major fund)
and for the Solid Waste fund (a nonmajor fund). Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits G, H, and 1.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds. '

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits J and K.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic
financial statements can be found on Exhibit L.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to basic financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a Town’s financial position, In the case of
the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $68,142,317 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

TOWN OF MANSFIELD NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Cument and other assets........ccc.......  § 11,661,934 $ 12,411,803 § 527,849 $ 583,549 $ 12,189,783 $ 12,995,352
Capital assets (Net)........ccooeeeerreennen. 67,523,686 67,559,841 871,322 925,951 68,395,008 68,485,792
TOTAL ASSETS......oeeveeeerrene 79,185,620 79,971,644 1,399,171 1,509,500 80,584,791 81,481,144
Long-term liabilities outstanding........ 8,839,749 8,447,597 147,992 23,990 8,987,741 8,471,587
Other liabilities.......oooeoveeeeeeeeececeere, 3,375,982 6,252,613 78,751 142,585 3,454,733 6,395,198
TOTAL LIABILITIES........cccoovcvmenrennn 12,215,731 14,700,210 226,743 166,575 12,442,474 14,866,785
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets
net of related debt..............ooccceeee 62,380,466 61,779,841 871,322 925,951 63,751,788 62,705,792
Restricted................. . 3,612,577 840,920 3,612,577 840,920
Unrestricted. ..o 476,846 2,650,673 301,106 416,974 717,952 3,067,647
TOTALNET ASSETS. ..o ¥ 66,969,889 $ 65,271,434 $ 1,172,428 % 1,342,925 § 68,142,317 % 66,614,359

By far the largest portion of the Town’s net assets (94%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and
equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, pump station and sewer distribution system), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities

An additional portion of the Town'’s net assets (5.3 %) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($777,952) may be used to meet the
Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the Town as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The
same held true for the prior fiscal year.

The Town’s net assets increased by $1,647,958 during the current fiscal year. This increase is a result of positive

operations in the General Fund and significant tax collections received in the prior year but earned in the current
year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Town’s net assets by $1,698,455, thereby

accounting for the total increase in the net assets of the Town. Business-type activities decreased net assets by
$50,497.

Revenues

Governmental activities revenues totaled $42,638,616 for fiscal year 2005. Property taxes are the largest revenue
source for the Town and represent 43.5% of governmental revenues. Current tax collections were 98.4% of the
adjusted tax levy. Operating grants and contributions revenues are the Town’s second largest revenue. Operating
grants and contributions revenues include grants for education, public works and community services and account
for 25.1% of governmental revenues for the year. Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
account for 18.2% of governmental revenues and include property tax related grants.

The most significant fluctuations from the prior year amount were as follows:

e Charges for service increase by $888,479 due to an increase in Community Center memberships and fees,
and an increase in ambulance user fees recorded in the CNR Fund.

e (Capital grants and contribution increased by $785,495 due to the receipt of a FEMA grant, ISTEA grant,
and an increase in the Town Aid Road grant.

* Property taxes increased by $964,953 due to property revaluation and demand for services.

e Grants and contributions not restricted fo specific programs increased by $1,173,871 due to a $1,546,617
increase in the PILOT grant offset by a reduction in the Pequot grant of $374,873.

Expenses

Governmental expenses totaled $40,940,161 for the fiscal year. Of the expenses, $26,431,915 or 64.6% is related
to education. Public works expenses amounted to $3,698,504 or 9%. Community services expenses were

$4,886,361 or 11.9%, public safety expenses were $2,775,110 or 6.8% and general government expenses were
$2,538,107 or 6.2%.

The most significant fiuctuations from the prior year amount were as follows:
e Community services increased by $474,231 due to the expansion of Community Center services.

All other changes in expenses paralieled growth in demand for services and inflation.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmeni-Wide Financial Analysis (continued)

TOWN OF MANSFIELD CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
REVENUES:
Program revenues:
Charges forsemvices...........cocoevvvvennn.s 3 4,065968 § 3,177489 § 1,172,830 § 1,242,008 5 5,238,798 § 4,419,497
Operating grants and contributions........... 10,706,110 10,954,571 191,819 33,181 10,897,929 10,987,752
Capital grants and contributions............... 1,185,813 400,318 1,185,813 400,318
General revenues:
Property taxes.............ocoveeieiinineians 18,524,910 17,559,957 18,524,910 17,559,957
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs............... 7,756,083 6,582,212 7,756,083 6,582,212
Investment income..........ooeiveiiin.. 312,972 176,649 312,972 176,649
Miscellaneous...........ocoooiiiiiiiiiiinns 86,760 100,226 2,157 4,525 88,917 104,751
TOTALREVENUES...............ccoiiiinnen. 42,638,616 38,951,422 1,366,806 1,279,714 44,005,422 40,231,136
EXPENSES
General government...............ooiiiveenienn, 2,538,107 2,417,854 2,538,107 2,417,854
Publicsafety........cooovvviniiivic 2,775,110 2,678,808 2,775,110 2,678,808
Public wOrks......oocovvviviiiviiiiiiieciee e 3,698,504 3,680,017 3,698,504 3,680,017
Community services.........o...cooeeiiiiniiannnn. 4,886,361 4,412,130 4,886,361 4,412,130
Community development,..........ccoceevernnnen. 328,078 303,910 328,078 303,910
Education........cccoveiviniiiinniiiiiccn e 26,431,915 26,897,222 26,431,915 26,897,222
Interest eXpense. .....ooeiiii e 282,086 276,633 282,086 276,633
Sewer department..............ccociieiieiinannL. 153,202 152,480 153,202 152,480
Transfer station............cccoeiiii i, 1,264,101 1,108,927 1,264,101 1,108,927
TOTAL EXPENSES. ..o 40,940,161 40,666,574 1,417,303 1,261,407 42,357,464 41,927,981
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS..... 1,698,455 (1,715,152) (50,497} 18,307 1,647,958 (1,696,845)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1 (AS RESTATED)........ 65,271,434 66,986,586 1,222,925 1,324,618 66,494,359 68,311,204
NET ASSETS -JUNE 30......cciiiiiiiinieiinnn. 5 66,969,889 § 65271434 § 1,172428 % 1,342,925 5 68,142,317 § 66,614,359
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the Town’s net assets by $50,497. General revenues
do not support the Town’s business-type activities; thus, the largest source of revenues comes from charges for
services. Ofthe $1,366,806 in total business-type revenues, over 85.8% came from charges for services, and 14%
came from operating grants and contributions. Miscellaneous revenues make up the remaining revenue and are
less than 1% of the Town’s business-type activities

The sewer department expenses were $153,202 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, and the transfer station
expenses were $1,264,101. Transfer station expenses were higher by $155,174 primarily due to landfill closing
costs.

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a Town’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $4,967,764, an increase of $144,702 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 27 percent of this total
amount ($1,355,466) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the Town’s
discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because
it has already been committed 1) to liquidate purchase orders of the prior period ($2,953,327), 2) to pay debt
service ($136,939), 3) to generate income to pay for the perpetual care of the municipal cemetery ($366,679), 4)
to pay contract commitments ($153,701), or 5) for permanently restricted endowments ($1,652).

The general fund is the operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance
of the general fund was $1,568,102, while total fund balance reached $1,656,703. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total general
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 4.5% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 4.8% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the Town’s general fund increased by $543,194 during the current fiscal year. The increase
was attributable to revenue received in excess of budget, specifically conveyance taxes, building permits, police
services, PILOT grant and property taxes.

Capital projects fund. This fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition of major
equipment or construction of facilities. The capital projects fund’s expenditures exceeded its revenues and
transfers in by $186,053 for the fiscal year. This is a result of expenditures related to Community Center
construction and various projects funded in prior years.

Proprietary funds. The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets at the end of the year amounted to $395,023 for the Sewer Operating fund, ($93,917), for
the Solid Waste Disposal fund, and $719,249 for the Internal Service funds. The total increase (decrease) in net
assets for the funds was $25,766 for the Sewer Operating fund, (8§76,263) for the Solid Waste Disposal Fund, and
(8515,485) for the Internal Service funds. Other factors concerning the finances of these three funds have already
been addressed in the discussion of the Town’s business-type activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget can be briefly summarized as follows:

. $99,837 in miscellaneous increases in general government activities
. $59,860 in decreases allocated to public safety

. $35,100 in increases allocated to the public works department

. § 610 in increases allocated to community services

. $ 4,439 in decreases allocated to community development

During the year, revenues and other financing sources were more than budgetary estimates by $548.416;
expenditures were less than budgetary estimates by $3,606. The revenue shortfall in investment income
($100,000) due to a transfer of interest income to the CNR Fund, was offset by an increase in revenues from
Charge for Services ($398,860) which were substantially the result of town clerk fees related mortgage
refinancing and an increase in building permit fees. Expenditures were right on budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2005, amounts $68,395,008 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and
equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, pump station and sewer distribution system. The total decrease in the Town’s
Investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $90,784 and consisted of $36,155 for governmental
activities and $54,629 for business-type activities. Capital Asset additions for the year of $1,873,794 was offset
by depreciation for the year in the amount of $1,964,578.

TOWN OF MANSFIELD CAPITAL ASSETS

(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Band. . .o 8 4151,772 8§ 4,151,972 % 74798 0§ 74,798 0§ 4,226,570 5 4,226,570
Construction in progress.................... 2,203,936 1,366,951 2,203,936 1,366,951
Land improvements...............c.oeeee.e 971,665 737,814 971,665 737,814
Buildings.......coooiiiiii s 23,404,935 24,261,244 47,162 55,705 23,452,097 24,316,949
Improvements other than buildings....... 230,507 246,702 230,507 246,702
Machinery and equipment.................. 1,253,322 1,204,453 148,780 170,525 1,402,102 1,374,978
Wehicles.......oooiviieir e 1,343,874 1,265,102 1,343,874 1,265,102
Infrastrugture. . .......ooveeivnieeneennenss 33,963,675 34,325,803 33,963,675 34,325,803
Pump station............ccoeeiiiiinniinnn. 126,976 130,372 126,976 130,372
Sewer distribution system.................. 473,606 494,551 473,606 494,551
TOTAL.......cirrvimreiisnee. 3 67,523,686 8 67,559,841 & 871,322 § 925951 § 68395008 $ 68,485,792

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note III.C.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total bonded debt outstanding of $4,800,000.
The entire amount is backed by the full faith and credit of the Town.

TOWN OF MANSFIELD OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activities

2005 2004
General Obligation Bonds — Town § 2,775,000 § 3,210,000
General Obligation Bonds - School 2,025,000 2,570,000
TOTAL ¥ 4,800,000 $ 5,780,000

The Town maintains an “Aa3” rating from Moody’s for general obligation debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7 times total tax
collections including interest and lien fees and the tax relief for elderly freeze grant. The current debt limitation
for the Town is $128,681,014, which is significantly in excess of the Town’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note OLE.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Town 1s located east of Hartford, Connecticut, and is the home of the University of Connecticut. With over
5,000 employees, the University is the major employer for the Town. This has a positive effect on employment
rates regardless of the business cycle.

* The following table presents unemployment rates for Mansfield, the Hartford Labor Market, the State and

the United States.
2005 Monthly
Yearly Town of Hartford Labor State of United
Average Mansfield Market Connecticut States
2000 1.3% 2.4% 2.3% 4.0%
2001 1.6 2.8 33 4.6
2002 2.1 4.5 4.3 5.8
2003 2.5 5.9 5.5 6.0
2004 34 5.2 49 55
January 3.8 5.5 5.2 5.2
February 3.7 5.6 53 54
March 4.0 5.3 5.0 5.2
April 3.8 5.1 4.8 52
May 4.8 5.5 5.3 5.1
June 5.0 5.7 54 5.0

The above factors were considered in preparing the Town’s budget for the 2006 fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in the Town’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, 4 South Eagleville Road,
Storrs CT 06268.

23



... ]
Basic Financial
Statements



EXHIBIT A

(10f2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005
COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT UNIT
MANSFIELD
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE DISCOVERY
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL DEPOT, INC.
ASSETS
CurTent agsets:
L5011 RO 3 45,621 ) 5 45,621 5 200
TRVESEMEIIES. .. ...ce e ee e e ee e e sesseesaesbesemseansnrns 8,234,562 459,685 2,694,247 237,607
Receivables:
Property taXes. ... ..ovveio e e e 280,760 280,760
Intergovernmental... 424,363 424,363
Loans. 49,890 49,890
QOther..,.. 404,623 66,479 471,102
Other assets.... 24,141 24,14§
Bond 1SSUE COBS..uiiiimviinnrinimerriraserrens socsmsassemeemeeessnees 6,185 6,185
Total CUITENL ASSIS. ...ccvecruerreeeieeeasrerneseaaesensrsnes seseaeacseneemes 9,470,145 526,164 9,996,309 237,807
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted agsets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash... o 48,761 48,761
Permanently restricted:
INVESTMENIS. ..o s vra e 319,849 319,849
Total restricted assets.. ..o, 368,610 - 368,610 -
Receivables (net):
PrODETLY LAXES. .. venvintanviesiees i eenvmmeeevamraeveneeeeenn 260,650 260,650
ABBEEEMENLS. oot e 3,626 3,626
IntergovernmMental......cciennesnneseressressssners 581,474 581,474
927,954 927,954
1,685 1,685
Total receivables (DEt)........ccoee e 1,773,704 1,685 1,775,389 -
Other noncuwirent assets:
Bond iS58 COSS. oot 49,475 49,475
Capital assets {net of accumulated depreciation):
Land, ... e e 4,151,772 74,798 4,226,570
Construction in PrOBIESS.......c.viveeieeieeverieaaninns 2,203,936 2,203,936
Land iMprovements.......c..oeevevuesoe e innrmncenrenns 971,665 971,665
Buildings.......occoiveveveieeieeeveeee 23,404,935 47,162 23,452,097
Improvements other than buildings.... 230,507 230,507
Machinery and equipment...... e 1,253,322 148,780 1,402,102
Vehicles.....cooovciviiiiniiinns 1,343,874 1,343,874
Infrastructure. .. ... e e e 33,963,675 33,963,675
Pump Station......ooovenie e 126,976 126,976
Sewer distribution system..............nnn 473,606 473,606
Total Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation). 67,523,686 871,322 68,395,008 - .
Total RONCUITENT ASSELS...coiuvverrire s rrse e snsssecmsenneas 49,715,475 873,007 70,588,482 -
TOTAL ASSETS.....cioivvvsrmrirsimrims e srsensms e eme e ens s 79,185,620 1,399,171 80,584,791 237,807
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A

(2of2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005
COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT UNIT
MANSFIELD
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE DISCOVERY
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL DEPOT, INC.
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Cash overdrafl.........ccooee e e 3 652,996 3 3 652,996 5
Accounts payable..........ocoveeceeee e 937,820 78,751 1,016,571 12,789
Acerued Habilities.... ..o enrecienenmnsseniere e eeeesenes 1,265,404 1,265,404
Accrued interest payable,, 24,576 24,576
Uneamed TeVERUe. ........co.ce.eeiee e e eee 495,186 495,186
Total current liabilities. ...........oocvei i 3,375,982 78,751 3,454,733 12,789
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities due withinone year................. 1,412,471 9,598 1,422,069
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year............ 7427278 138,394 7.565.672
Totat Noncurrent liabilities.....................o..o.o. ... 8,839,749 147,992 8,987,741 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...t 12,215,731 226,743 12,442,474 12,789
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................ 62,280,466 871,322 63,751,788
Restricted for:
Capital Projects.......oovvvivi et cee e e eve s 153,701 153,701
Perpetual care:
Nonexpendable..........covvveviiiicnn e 366,679 366,679
Endowments:
Nonexpendable....................l 1,652 1,652
Expendable 279 279
DEbE SBIVICE. .. cvtairiesveevareinras e eee e aeeeee e s 136,939 136,939
OLher PUIPOSES. .. ..o \ereeyvmirirviamrtrrrsieor e irsaresis 2,953,327 2,953,327
Unrestricted. .. .ooooe e e, 476,846 301,106 777,952 225,018
TOTALNET ASSETS........oo il 3 66,969,889 % 1,172,428 ¥ 68,142,317 3 225,018
{(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are a2n integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITC

(1of2)
JTOWN OF MANSFIELD., CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2005
MANSFIELD OTHER TOTAL
DISCRETIONARY CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL FUND PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash ) 93,782 5 3 S 600 3 94,382
Investments, 3,839,968 225,773 1,968,983 1,780,359 7,815,083
Receivables:
Propery taxXes... .o cvv e aes e, 471,840 471,840
Sewer assessments... ... ... 3,700 3,700
Intergovernmental ... 22,500 40,860 30,624 93,984
Loans....... 597,800 997,800
Other... 55,000 3,974 176,000 33,837 268,811
Due from other funds . 354,000 354,000
18T S 6,276 6,276
TOTAL ASSETS. ... oo et v e ae e eae $ 4,837,000 $ 1,227,547 $§ 2,185,843 $ 1,855,396 3 10,105,876
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Cash overdrafi. 3 652,996 5 $ b 5 652,996
Accounts and other payables..........ovvrersisrias 475,844 223 138.604 58,651 673,322
Accrued liabilities...... ... 785,404 785,404
Due to other funds... e 591,588 333,154 924,742
Unearned revenue. .. ... oo vocvueveeve ce e een e 674,555 997,800 176,000 253,293 2,101,648
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccooeveee e e 3,180,387 998,023 314,604 645,098 5,138,112
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances......... ... cooen e 88,601 2,864,726 2,953,327
COMMItMIEHS. .. ..oy v e v eeere e 153,701 153,701
Debl service... ..o e e 136,939 136,939
Perpetual care. e 366,679 366,679
Endowments... .o oo v oo cee e e e e 1,652 1,652
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund..........cooee e 1,568,102 1,568,102
Special revenue funds... ..o eeeeaelL 229,524 761,267 990,791
Capital projects funds.................. o1 1,147,188} (1,147,188)
Debt service funds.... {56,518) (56,518}
Endowments.........ccocci i, 279 279
TOTAL FUND BALANCES..........c.0ovvve1s 1,656,703 229,524 1,871,239 1,210,298 4.967.764
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.... S 4,837,090 S 1,227,547 §  2,185.843 S 1,855,396 $ 10,105,876
{Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE
TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2005

EXHIBIT €
(20f2)

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (EXHIBIT A)
ARE DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET. THE DETAILS OF THIS DIFFERENCE
ARE AS FOLLOWS:

TOTAL FUND BALANCE (EXHIBIT C, PAGE ).......co ot it e et ottt et et et e oo ee e v em ves et b a1 et st i saes

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning net capital assets and curment AdgitionNs. .. .. .o voeiee e e e s e et e e e e e et e et e e ee e e et e e e aan
DePreCiation @RPEIISE. .. ... ... .. co it et e ve et e cee ae et e oas e et e et ot een en e ae et fu aet re ern re Ten na bee tat ate oee enn e e en

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TQ PAY FOR CURRENT PERIOD
EXPENDITURES AND, THEREFORE, ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS:

Property tax and sewer assessment interest and lien accrual..

Property tax, sewer assessment and community development block grant loan rccewable accrua] bas1s change... P,

School building grant receivable. ..
Allowance for doubtful accoums..
Bond issue costs.......

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE COST OF
INSURANCE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS:

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net assets... s
Less net capital assets reportcd above

SOME LIABILITIES, INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE, ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE IN THE
CURRENT PERIOD AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:

Beginning long-term liabilities and current year additions......... ... ... .. ...l
Long-term liability payments

Accrued Interest PAYABIE. .. ... .. iiu ey st it s et e s et e e et e e e e e et es nae et nreas 2t et cn e en aen e eesnee s

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES... ... .0 it tis s vi e et con e et e e e et e oen et teeve e san e et e e e e

The nofes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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b 4,967,764

69,433,635
(1,909,949)

136,490
1,606,462
911,853

(86,950)
55,660

1,692,634
(973,3895)

(11,656,009}
2,816,260
(24,576)

$ 66,969,889

{Concluded)




EXHIBIT B

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

MANSFIELD OTHER TOTAL
DISCRETIONARY CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL FUND PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
Property taxes, $ 18,571,837 5 g $ 3 18,571,837
Intergavernmental 15,580,254 753,813 2,803,123 19,137,190
Investment income............. e 173,845 4,310 119,602 297,757
Charges fOr ServICes. ..o mmmneiresseserneneens 1,039,695 131,417 2,809,914 3,981,026
Met increase in fair value of investments.......... 4,622 4,622
Contributions......... 56,000 119,203 175,203
Other local revenues... 4,886 2,145 68,145 75,176
TOTAL REVENUES.....ccccooiivieeees ceeeeevinene s 35,370,517 135,727 811,958 5,924,600 42,242,811
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government....., 1,374,972 146,778 1,521,750
Public safety.................. 2,343,927 13,283 2,357,210
Public works 2,251,760 100,124 2,351,884
Community services. 1,423,345 2,333,536 3,756,881
Community development... 220,521 13,479 243,000
Townwide expenditures..., 1,772,148 1,772,149
Education,..... 25,077,649 1,40E,171 26,478,820
Capital outlay 2,003,430 2,003,430
Debt service 1,241,507 1,241,507
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.........covvvineerienne e 34,473,323 13,479 2,003,430 5,236,299 41,726,631
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.........cccccovvviiimmmiin i 897,194 122,248 (1,191,472} 688,210 516,180
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TrANSEErs IM.cuevovececeerenieemenenee et e nerenes 252,500 1,605,419 871,500 2,129,419
Transfers Ol . coeeeceermeeecseresseens s emenees (606,500) (1,894,397} {2,500,897)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).... {354,000) - 1,005,419 {1,022,897) (371,478)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.............. 543,194 122,248 (186,053) (334,687) 144,702
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1,2004.................. 1,113,509 107,276 2,057,292 1,544,985 4,823,062
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30,2005................ $ 1,656,703 3 229,524 5 1,871,239 § 1,210,298 $ 4,967,764

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITE

{1 0of2)
JOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
(EXHIBIT B) ARE DUE TO:
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBITD}.......cvt v $ 144,702
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:
L0 1k 00 O TP TU 1,873,794
LD T Te) = T 1 < O RSSO (1,909,949)
Net increase in capital assets of IEEINal SEIVICE FUNAS. ...\ ettt e e ee e e ene e e reaerannans (320,385)
| OO T TSRO . (356,540)
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds and revenues recognized in the Fund Financial Statements are not recognized in the
Statement of Activities: :
School building Srant TECEIPIS. ...« ettt et e e v e e v s ren e e e et s r e e s at e e et aea s i nneenns (366,387)
Increase in property tax and sewer assessment receivable - accrual Basis ChaANZE. c.vvevvverirrvrreeriirereeeeeiiaiaennns 163,682
Increase in property tax and sewer assessment interest and HEN FEVENUE. ... ...ovviveiinieriesrease e i ainreasinssseanses (20,258)
Increase in property tax and sewer assessment allowance for doubtful ACCOUMS......vviveneenivrniiiieiieeeeeieeieeanes, (3,165)
Total L et a e aa e ettt et et e e e e anan (226,128)
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of govemmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar iterns when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:
Principal repayments:
General ObliBatION DOMUS. ... ittt e e et e e e e et e a e ananara e 980,000
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E

(20f2)
JOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of cumrent financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
Compensated aBSENCES (TEE). .. ovurriierie s iirseeie i e et as it ar e saesstesbn seines tesbba s btn s et sebasan s e raneeneeennennns 3 560,792
Accrued intereSt PAYADIE. ... i er i e s i te e b e et e e e nn e en e e s 3,026
Early retirement inCentives (MBL). ... ittt s st e s et e ettt et s s r e e e n e e e e nnann 210,437
Amortization 0F BONA PrEmIUIL . ...vuuiieris i it et e e e e e e eens 1,228
Amortization OF BOT ISSURNMGE COSES. ... uuuuiie s iririrai it ae e et et ot e eme e e e e e e enaaneen e (6,185)
Amortization of deferred Charges. ... ..o e e e eaas (18,648}
Postemployment benefits ObHZAtON. ...ovuiie i i e e e ee e (109,714)
(s O TR 640,936
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of insurances and management services to
INAIVIAUAL QEPAITIMEITS. . ... oot ittt i i e ettt eee e et e e eia e ettt et e e e eaeneneenrnraraaernensnranrnn 504,892
The net revenue of the activities of the Internal Service Funds is reported with governmental activities....................... 10,593
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B).......ccovernrnnrieeermsscesesenesnessessesnans 3 1,698,455
{Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT F
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
PLOPEItY LXES.....viveercverrerrerrrerrerens et mssssesbenens 5 18,449,785 § 18,449,785 § 18,571,837 % 122,052
Intergovernmental . 14,714,030 15,054,688 15,211,261 156,573
Investment INCOME. .......covvevvreviesreresesesse s sseeeeeenens 200,000 200,000 173,845 (26,155)
640,835 640,835 1,039,695 398,860
7,800 7,800 4,886 {2,914)
TOTAL REVENUES........oooinieniineceeeeeeee 34,012,450 34,353,108 35,001,524 648,416
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General POVEIMMENL...............co.cvoveeveeeereeresieeeeereeens 1,280,650 1,380,487 1,380,487 -
Public safety.... . 2,409,310 2,349,450 2,349,450 -
Public WOTKS. ..o 2,218,340 2,253,440 2,253,440 -
Community services......... 1,429,340 1,429,950 1,429,950 -
Community development.. 283,870 279,521 279,521 -
Townwide expenditires...........oco..ceccevvvvrrrrerrvaverens 1,572,830 1,812,150 1,812,150 -
EAUucation.......ccoiuumreeiinese e e e 24,594,110 24,594,110 24,590,504 3,606
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... 33,788,450 34,099,108 34,095,502 3,606
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES......cooovt v e e e eee i e 224,000 254,000 906,022 652,022
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers M. 352,500 352,500 252,500 (100,000}
Transfers OUL..........ccoeeecceeecccevv s {576,500) {606,500) (606,500} -
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)... (224,000) {254,000) (354,000) {100,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE.......cooooeee. 5 - 3 - 352,022 8 552,022
FUND BALANCE -JULY 1, 2004 1,016,080
FUND BALANCE -JUNE 30, 2005......ccoeivenremieceinnae 5 1,568,102

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT G

JTOWN OF MANSFIELD. CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2005
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
MAIOR NONMAJOR
FUND FUND
SEWER SOLID INTERNAL
OPERATING WASTE SERVICE
FUND DISPOSAL TOTALS FUNDS
ASSETS
Current assets:
investments....... 3 365,140 s 94,545 S 459,685 3 739,328
Accounts receivable...... 45,711 20,768 66,479 135,812
Due from other funds.... - 329,201
Other... ..o e e et e e e - 17,865
Total GUITENL ASSELS....mvrceesvrir s inenree s 410,851 115,313 526,164 1,222,206
Noncurrent assets:
Accounts receivable - TEL.........cccovvmvevnrrrsererenvnres 1,685 1,685
Capital assets (net of accurnulated depreciation):
- 60,298 8,500 74,798 145,649
Construction In Progress... ... oo cee ceevee e - 48,663
Land improvements... ... co.ec v eescveaaaann - 259,740
Buildings............... 47,162 47,162 106,005
Equipment.. - 148,730 143,780 413,328
Pump station......... .o oo e ey 126,976 126,976
Sewer distribution system...................... 473,606 473.606
Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation).........o...ocoecrcerrueeneecnececnrens 666,880 204,442 871,322 973,385
Total noncurrent asSets.......c. e vevvve vvs o 668,565 204,442 873,007 973,385
TOTAL ASSETS..... 1.079.416 319.755 1,359,171 2,195.591
LIABILITIES
Cuirent liabilities:
Accounts payable. 17,513 61,238 78,751 22,391
Accrued claims payable... - 480,000
Drue to other funds. - 566
Landfilt post closure liability........................ 4,000 4,000
Compensated abSEnces....oivneeeeee e, 5.598 5,598
Total current liabilities......ceeuereercvececenenne. 17,513 70,836 88,349 502,957
Noncurrent liabilities:
Landfill post closure lability....oeooeceercecereeeae 116,000 116,000
Compensated absences, 22,394 22,394
Total noncurrent labilities........vooerverernnee - 138,394 138,394 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES... ... ..o e e i s 17,513 209,230 226,743 502,957
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital @55€18... v vveviever vvsvreies ie veniie e 666,880 204,442 871,322 973,385
Unrestricted.......ovvvevvn i v 395,023 {93.917) 301,106 719,249
TOTAL NET ASSETS... ..ot v v e e § 1,061,903 s 110,525 S 1,172,428 b 1,692,634

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD. CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

EXHIBIT H

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
MAJOR NONMATOR
FUND FUND
SEWER SOLID INTERNAL
OPERATING WASTE SERVICE
FUND DISPOSAL TOTALS FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUES:

Sewer charges.... [N 3 178,000 5 5 178,000 5

Intergovernmental.........ccccoevuivermee v vie e e 191,819 191,819

Garbage collection fees... ... cvveeviiiricc i iniiens 747,449 747,449

TIPPINg £EeS. it 51,302 91,302

Transfer station fees, . ...l 82,456 82,456

Sale of recyclables. 73,623 73,623

Premiums.......... - 5,284,877

Charges for service - 379,645

Sales............ - 35,734

Rental income - 165,371

Contributions 270,000

Other TeVenUEes. ...oveensneerine 968 1,189 2,157 11,584
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.........ccocccvvviiiiienenaenn 178,968 1,187,838 1,366,806 6,347,212
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Wages and fringe benefits........coocenvurvmiiressnninn 245,741 245,741 204,435

Administrative....... - 553,508

Medical Claims. ..o - 4,398,084

Workers' compensation......... - 320,047

R.epairs & maintenance... - 156,243

Supplies, materials & rentals.. - 102,536

Software & related communication COSIS.......veememeecieeeiieens - 123,087

Phone . - 125,630

System support.... - 68,807

Contract pickup 313,287 313,287

Sewer billings...... 107,912 107,912

Supplies and services.. 20,949 32,497 53,446

Landfill closing fees... 176,396 176,396

Dumping fees............. 465,892 465,892

Depreciation...... 24,341 30,288 54,629 161,421
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES......... .o v e 153,202 1,264,101 1,417,303 6,213,798
OPERATING BNCOME (EOSS).rve.vovovreeveesseovermreeresemsessnae 35,766 (76,263) (50,497) 133,414
NONOPERATING REVENUES:

INVESHNENE ICOME.......cececeemscoreeeeeeeemecemnsaeeesme e ssnrrenns - 10,593
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS......ccoviiiniiiiinen 25,766 (76,263) {50,497) 144,007
TRANSFERS:

Transfers in...... - 400,000

Transfers out.... - (28,522)
NET TRANSFERS.....icooiis it e sir i nnr sasaann - - - 371,478
CHANGE TN NET ASSETS.....ccrvnnininie 25,766 (76,263) (50,497) 515,485
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2004 {AS RESTATED)..... 1,036,137 186,788 1,222,925 1,177,149
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JUNE 30,2005....c..ccvvmvneeiannns 3 1,061,903 $ 110,525 5 1,172,428 $ 1,692 634

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JOWN OF MANSEIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

EXHIBIT 1

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES

MAJOR NONMAJOR

FUND FUND
SEWER SOLID INTERNAL

OPERATING WASTE SERVICE
FUND DISPOSAL TOTALS FUNDS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers... S 174,136 5 1,211,951 $ 1,386,087 S 797,925

Premiums received....... . - 5,282,392

Payments 10 VERdOTs... ..o vttt e e e e e e e (233,123) (941,647} (1,174,770) (1,639,018)

Payments for claims...... - (4,398,084)

Payments to employees... ............. (247.736) (247,736) (204,435)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVTTIES......... (58,987) 22,568 (36,419) {16E,220)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers from other funds... ..o oov e vee oo e e - 371,478
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Capital 33SE15... ... vuveververves veecrnsesas revasternserserens - (211,306}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

IRVESIMENE IMCOME. .. .. ooe e et ceeve et et et meeee e e e vae eee eeemnnen - 10,593
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.... (58,987) 22,568 (36,419} 9,045
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -JULY 1,2004... ...ooooeiieee i 424,127 71,977 496,104 730,283
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2005... ... oo i e 5 365,140 3 94,545 $ 459,685 $ 739,328
RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents perabove... ... 5 365,140 5 94,545 k3 459,685 3 739,328

Cash equivalents reported as investments.............ooov e ceirecccveien (365,140) {94,545) (459,685} (739,328)
BALANCE SHEET CASH. .. ...t et e ee et cer v cve e e e e v eer e 3 - 3 - 3 - b3 -
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)... 5 25,766 3 (76,263} 5 (50,497} g 133,414
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by {used in} operating activities:
Depreciation... . 24,341 30,288 54,629 161,421
CORLEIBULION 10 CETlLOWEE .11 +vv 11 11 s eesmreses s s sos s ere s oo {270,000)
(Increase) decrease in:
ACCoUNIS 1eCeivable... ...cvvvee e et e e eae e et e e {4,832) 24,13 19,281 3,105
Due from other funds.. - (128,552}
Other... - {181}
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable. ., (104,262) 46,425 {57.837) 3,665
Due to other funds . - (64,092)
Compensated aBSENCES... ..o vt i e i e aer e e e s e are {1,995) (1,995)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES... ...... $ (58,987) by 22,568 $ (36,419 $ (161,220)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD

NNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT J

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2005
POSTEMPLOYMENT
HEALTHCARE AGENCY
TRUST FUND FUNDS
ASSETS

CASH. e ceeerrrrerenenremeree e renssessesssessesessesnssransansesnanesessesessesnensns 3 b 47,816
INVESTMENTS, AT FAIR VALUE:

Money market mutual fund......ccevevnererr e,

Pooled fixed INCOME......c..cvieiicercrrier e 599,234

Bond mutual funds.........cooeeeoer e 135,194

Equity mutual funds......cocveeeeveceerrececceeresesneenesseenene e, 135,022
TOTAL INVESTMENTS......ociiriereienrteereriersesereseasaransansasssens 270,216 599,234
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE........coccntirrereremrenererneeveeseressesnssenne. 8,501
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS.........cocreetrmciiineneeese e sneeas 354,009
TOTAL ASSETS. .o e renrarsseneenseseras e sae e smeae e 270,216 1,009,560

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNLS PAYEDIE....coirvrcirinieric e varsrnnssnnane. 1,009,195

Due to other funds.....coenvivenciiiin e, 111,537 365
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....oceceeeeetrieeenesrerens s sae e e ee s 111,537 1,009,560

NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT

HEALTHCARE PURPOSES.......o b 158,679 5 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT K

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

POST-
EMPLOYMENT
HEALTHCARE
TRUST FUND
ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

BINPIOYET. ...ttt 3 40,000

Investment income:

Net depreciation in fair value of investments................c.cceevevvceeienne. (942)
Interest and dividends. ... ..o e aaeaaaaas 5,413
Net Investment IICOIIC. ..ot v e e e e e e e e e aaeeas 4,471
TOTAL ADDITIONS ... ee e 44,471
DEDUCTIONS:

B IlS. .ot 19,740
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ..ot r e e aree s envneesnnnes 24,731
NET ASSETS -JULY 1, 2004 ... ..o v v veeseee s 133,948
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2005, ..o b 158,679

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIFL.D, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The Town of Mansfield, Connecticut (Town) was incorporated in 1702, covers an area of approximately 45.1
square miles, and has been the home of the University of Connecticut since 1881.

The Town of Mansfield operates under the provisions of its Charter and the General Statutes of the State of
Connecticut. The legislative power of the Town is vested in a Town Council and the Town Meeting. The
Town Manager, who is the chief executive officer, superintends the concemns of the Town. The Town
Council is responsible for presenting fiscal operating budgets to the Town Meeting for approval. The Board
of Education is responsible for the operation of the school system.

L  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support; likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally
separate component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and confributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements,

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. is included in the Town’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report as a discretely presented component unit since the Depot is financially accountable to the Town
due to the Town Council’s approval authority over budget increases in excess of $10,000. The
organization is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the Town. The
agency appoints its own board, of which two of the members are also members of the Town Council.
Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. accounts for federal and state funds, local contributions and
participants’ fees for the operation of a child day care center.

The Town of Mansfield is the designated Local Agency pursuant to a Master Contract with the State of
Connecticut, dated May 17, 1974, between the Town and the State of Connecticut. Under the terms of
the Master Contract, the Town has entered into a Delegate Agency Contract with Mansfield Discovery
Depot, Inc. to carry out the program. The facilities in which Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. operates
are owned by the Town, and the operations of the child day care center benefit primarily Town
residents.

Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. does not issue separate audited financial statements.
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EXHIBIT L.
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary find financial
statements. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus but are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, expenditure-type reimbursement grants, certain intergovernmental revenues, transfers,
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the Town.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Mansfield Discretionary Fund accounts for the activity of the prior community development
block grants.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial revenues to be used for major capital asset
construction and/or purchases.

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Sewer Operating Fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s sewer operations.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Funds account for risk financing activities for insurance benefits as allowed by
GASB Statement No. 10 and for management services provided to other departments or agencies of
the government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Postemployment Healthcare Trust Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to pay
retiree medical benefits.

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students and employees and amounts held

for performance related activities.
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The Town also has the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise finds, subject to this same limitation. The Town has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are other charges between the Town’s sewer
operations and various other functions of the Town. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and conftributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the sewer operating enterprise fund, of the solid waste disposal enterprise fund, and of the Town’s
internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The sewer operating fund also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and intemal service funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Component Unit - The Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. is accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting and the economic resources measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred.

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1.  Deposits and Investments

Deposits - The Town’s and the component unit’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand,
demand deposits, money market accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of
three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments - Both the Town and the component unit’s eligible investments are governed by State of
Connecticut Statutes which, in general, allow the Town to invest in obligations of the United States
of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other interests in any
custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment company or
investment trust (as defined), in obligations of any State or political subdivision rated within the top
two rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of the State of
Connecticut or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any nationally
recognized rating service. For the capital and nonrecurring fund, not more than 31% can be invested
in equity securities. Investment income is recorded in the fund in which it was earned.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

y A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

1. Deposits and Invesiments (Continued)

Investments for the Town and the component unit are reported at fair value. State Treasures
Investment IF'und is an investment pool managed by the State of Connecticut Office of the State
Treasurer. Investments must be made in instruments authorized by Connecticut General Statues
3-27¢ - 3-27e. Investment guidelines are adopted by the State Treasurer. The fair value of the
position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The balance of the pooled fixed
income investments were invested in a 2a-7 like pool. The fair value of the position in the pool is
the same as the value of the pool shares.

2.  Receivables and Payables

a. Interfunds

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds™ (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the govermment-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

b, Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, all property tax, sewer use, sewer assessment, and
loan receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncoliectibles. Allowance percentages range
from 2 to 14 percent of outstanding receivable balances at June 30, 2005, and are calculated
based upon prior collections.

In the fund financial statements, property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent
that they become available. Available means collected within the current fiscal year or within 60
days after the end of the fiscal year. Property taxes not expected to be collected during the
available period are recorded as deferred revenue.

Property taxes become an enforceable lien on October . Aggrieved parties may appeal to the
Board of Tax Review, which must hear their petition during the month of February, following
the lien date. The Board of Tax Review must render a final opinion no later than March 15.
Property taxes are levied on July 1 and are due and payable in two installments; July 1 for the
first half and January 1 for the second half. Property taxes receivabie, net of an allowance for
uncollectibles, are recorded as of the levy date. All bills under $50 are due in full July 1. Motor
vehicle taxes are due in one installment, July 1, and supplemental motor vehicle taxes are due in
full January 1. Certificates of continuing lien are filed against delinquent real estate taxes
within the first year afier the first installment of the tax. Real property valuations are
established by the Assessor's office and reflect 70 percent of 1993 fair market values. Motor
vehicle valuations reflect 70 percent of current retail value on the assessment date.

Loan receivables consist of Community Development Block Grant loans. The Town provides
low interest loans for residential rehabilitation.
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

3. Restricted Assels

The Cemetery and Local School funds are restricted to expenditure of the investment income only
for the donor-designated purpose.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities’ columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 for equipment, $20,000 for
improvements and $100,000 for infrastructure, and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, equipment and infrastructure of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 15-75
Enprovements other than buildings 15-35
Equipment 5-50
Roads 80-100
Bridges 75
Pump station 15
Sewer lines 50
Rolling stock - vehicles 8-25

5. Compensated Absences

A limited amount of vacation earned may be accumulated by employees until termination of their
employment, at which time they are paid for accumulated vacation. Unused sick leave may be
accumulated for certain employees up to 180 days, until termination, retirement or death, at which
time paymentis will be made. Certain employees of the Board of Education may elect to retire early,
in which case annual compensation will be one-fifth of the employee’s salary at the time of
retirement payable for a maximum of five consecutive years.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

6.

8.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity and Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified into the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net of only the debt applicable to
the acquisition or construction of these assets. Debt issued for non-capital purposes is excluded.

Restricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets restricted by external parties (creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted Net Assets
This category presents the net assets of the Town which are not restricted.
Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities and reported revenues, expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with
the current year’s presentation.
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EXHIBITL

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Budget Policies - The procedures for establishing the budgetary data reported in the financial statements
are as follows:

The Town legally adopts an annual budget for the General Fund and Capital Nonrecurring Special
Revenue Fund. Formal budgetary integration is employed by the Town Council as a management
control device during the year for the General Fund. A budgetary comparison on a legal basis has
been included in the appropriate financial statements and schedules, and budgetary to GAAP
reporting reconciliations have been provided in Note II. B., Budget - GAAP Reconciliation.

The Capital Projects Fund employs a project length budget, which is approved by the Annual Town
Meeting.

Prior to March 1, each department head, office, agency, board or commission of the Town,
supported wholly or in part from Town funds, shall submit budget requests in the form requested by
the Town Manager so as to indicate the programs, activities, and work accomplished in the current
fiscal year and to be accomplished during the ensuing year. These shall be accompanied by detailed
estimates of expenditures to be made and of revenues other than taxes to be collected during the
ensuing fiscal year, along with such other information as may be requested by the Council or the
Manager.

Prior to April 1, the Town Manager shall present to the Council a budget consisting of:

1. A budget message outlining the financial situation of the Town government and describing the
important features of the budget plan;

2. The budget of the Board of Education as submitted to the Manager, along with whatever
analysis or comments the Manager wishes to provide;

3. Statements of the Manager's proposed operating program and expenditures for the Town
functions and Town-supported functions, other than those of the Board of Education, along with
comparisons of amounts expended in the last completed fiscal year and estimated amounts to
be expended in the current fiscal year;

4. Information on amounts of revenue other than property taxes collected, by source, in the last
completed fiscal year, estimates for the current and for the ensuing year, along with information
and estimates regarding property tax revenues for the same periods;

5. Statements of the condition and estimated condition of the Town’s funds and of the debt service
obligations of the Town, proposed capital improvements to be undertaken during the ensuing
fiscal year or later years, and the proposed methods of financing them; and

6. Such other information as will assist the Council and the Town Meeting in deciding on an
annual appropriation and a capital improvements program.

The Council shall hold at least one public hearing on the budget during the month of April and shall
adopt a proposed budget, including a recommended appropriation act, by May 1, which shall be
published in a newspaper in general circulation in the Town at least five days prior to the annual
Town Meeting for budgeting consideration.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

An annual Town Meeting for budget consideration shall be held on the second Tuesday in May. This
meeting shall consider the budget presented to it by the Council and may approve or lower any item,
but may not raise the amount of such item. If the annual Town Meeting fails to adopt a budget, the
budget will be returned to the Council for its consideration. The Councii shall return the same or a
revised budget to a Town Meeting called by the Council for a date no later than ten days after the
annual meeting, at which the Town Meeting may approve or lower any item. Should the Town
Meeting then fail or refuse to adopt a budget, the budget appropriation last proposed by the Council
shall be in full effect.

The level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations without Council and/or Town
Meeting approval is at the department level for the General Fund and at the fund level for the Special
Revenue Fund. Management cannot legally amend or make additional appropriations once the
budget has been approved. Transfers between departments or new appropriations up to .5 percent of
the annual budget may be made by the Council. Transfers between departments or new
appropriations in amounis between .5 percent and 1 percent of the annual budget may be approved
by consecutive actions of the Council and a Town Meeting, which shall be called by the Council
following its action on the new spending proposal.

An appropriation of over 1 percent of the annual budget for an additional expenditure at the
department level not provided for in the annual budget may be approved by consecutive favorable
actions of the Council and a referendum of the electors of the Town at a special or regular election of
the Town, as one or the other may be determined by the Council. There were $340,658 of additional
appropriations to the General Fund budget, funded by additional revenue sources.

The Board of Education, which is not a separate legal entity but a function of the Town, is
authorized under State law to make any transfers required within their budget at their discretion. Any
additional appropriations must have Board of Education, Town Council and, if necessary, Town
Meeting approval.

Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year
in which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported in budgetary reports (Exhibit F) as expenditures in the current
year. Generally, all unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end, except those for the Capital
Projects Fund. Appropriations for capital projects are continued until completion of applicable
projects, even when projects extend more than one fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations in the
general fund are not reappropriated in the ensuing year’s budget, but are carried forward.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

B.

Budget - GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues, expenditures, and fund balance between the accounting treatment required
by GAAP (Exhibit D), and budgetary requirements (Exhibit F), is as follows:

GENERAL FUND
FUND
REVENUES  EXPENDITURES BALANCE

Balance - Budgetary Basis, Exhibit F - June 30, 2005 .................... $ 35,001,524 3 34,095,502 $ 1,568,102
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2004, l1qu1dated during

the year ended June 30, 2005... 97,429
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2004, charged to budgetary

expenditures during the year ended June 30, 2005......c.cceereremnene.. ( 88,601) 88,601
Teachers’ Retirement System on-behalf payment.......oeeoreecnecccnncnins 368,993 368.993
Balance - GAAP Basis Exhibit D - June 30, 2005 ..........ooneeeeee...... $ 35370517 $ 34473323 $_ 1,656,703

Donor Restricted Endowments

The Town has received certain endowments for the maintenance and improvement of cemeteries and
local schools. The amounts are reflected in net assets as restricted for other purposes. Investment
mcome (including appreciation of $24,830) is approved for expenditure by the individual Boards
responsible for each fund.

Deficit Fund Balances

The following individual funds had a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2005:

Special Revenue

Community development fund.........ccoccuu... 422
Debt Service Fund
Compensated absences fund......ccccoevveeee. $. 56,518

The deficits should be reduced in future years as additional operating transfers are received from the
general fund.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IIl. DETAILED NOTES

A. Cash and Investmenis

1

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2005, $662,939 of the Town’s bank balance of $818,373 was

exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized.......................... $ 586,645
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank’s

Trust department, not in the Town’s name...... 76,294
Total amount subject to custodial credit risk...... $ 662939

Investments - At June 30, 2005, the Town's investments (including the component unit) consisted of
the following:

INVESTMENT MATURITIES (in vears)

FAIR LESS
TYPE OF INVESTMENT VALUE N/A THAN 1 1-5 5-10
Mutual funds:
Equity mutual funds........cccon.... 3 170,187 3 170,187 § 5 3
Government bonds..........coceueuen.. 433,591 369,615 63,976
Corporate bond mutual funds...... 59,955 13,949 46,006
Money market mutual funds........ 140,724 140,724
Pooled fixed income. ....ccoeveveeerreeeeennne 9,285,678 9,285,678
.S, treasury Notes ....ocuweeeeeeneeeneeennnns 31018 10.138 20.880
TOTAL e $_ 10121153 § 170,187 § 9450489 $ 390495 § 109,982
Component Unit

At June 30, 2005, $237,607 was invested in pooled fixed income, which has a maturity of less than
one year.

Primary Government and Component Unit

Interest rate risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit risk - The Town has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to
credit risk other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State or political

subdivision or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision.

The Town’s investments in pooled fixed income, money market mutual funds and bond mutual
funds had average ratings as follows by Standard & Poor’s:
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments (Continued)

2. Investments (Continued)
MONEY CORPORATE GOVERNMENT

Primary Government POOLED MARKET BOND BOND
FIXED MUTUAL MUTUAL MUTUAL
AVERAGE RATING, INCOME FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
AAA s, $ 9,285,678 h) 126,443 3 $ 298,569
2751 5 J U 46,006
Unrated/U.S. government............ 14281 13.949 135.022
TOTAL e e $ 9285678 3 140,724 3 59,955 3 433,591
Component Unit

The investment in pocled fixed income has a credit rating of AAA.

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town’s investment in government bonds and
corporate bonds are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the Town’s name
and is not insured for amounts greater than $500,000.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the Town’s government-wide financial statements by type, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectibles, are as follows:

PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TAXES & LIEN FEES TOTAL
Current Portion ... eeceereesenesesecsonscas $ 207,406 3. 73354 $__280.760
Long-term Portion .....c.eeeeeceeeeececeenenec. $ 264,434 $ 63,136 § 327,570
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles ..... {_ 48.390) ( 18.530) (_ 66.920)
Net Long-term Portion ....uveeeecsnesiees 3 216044 $ 44606 § 260,650
SEWER CDBG

ASSESSMENT LOANS
Current Portion ..o enesines $ - $ 49,890
Long-term Portion .eveeveeveeeveveeeeneee 3 3,700 $ 947910
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles . ( 74) {__ 19.956)
Net Long-term Portion ......veeeevereerene b 3,626 $ 927954

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental

funds were as follows:
48
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EXHIBIT L

Ir. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

B.

Receivables (Continued)

DEFERRED REVENUE:

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund).......coreerervrerececereescens

Special assessments not yet due (special revenue fund)........cccveune..
Loan receivable not yet eamned (special revenue fund).........cccerverenee
Contributions receivable not yet eamed (capital projects fund).......
Contributions receivable not yet eamned (special revenue fund).......

UNEARNED REVENUE:

Advance tax collections (general fund)......ceveecercniiecninninieicenee,

Unearned revenue on park and recreation fees (special revenue fund)...evveeis

Grant draw downs prior to meeting all eligibility requirements

(special revenue fund) ...

TOTAL UNEARNED REVENUE FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005 was as follows:

Primary Government

$ 397,962
3,700
997,800
176,000
31,000

276,593
121,886

96,707
$2101,648

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2004  INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30, 2005
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
AN et ns s s e sen s esstenn $ 4,151,772 8 3 $ 4,152,772
Construction N PIOZTESS......vererrrrsasssnresrsrsossares 1,366,951 837,454 469 2,203,936
Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated............ 5,518,723 837.434 469 6,355,708
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Land improvements 776,646 270,000 1,046,646
Buildings...c.coooevnceeeerecccnnnne 32,905,866 32,905,866
Improvements other than buildings............cce.. 382,839 382,839
Machinery and equipment .........ccocverenrerversesnss 3,070,607 297,084 3,367,091
VEhICIES ot 2,312,972 244,725 2,557,697
INTTASHUCEUTE ..o ecresrverrsseessne e veressreses 46,738,226 225.000 46,963,229
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated .................. 86,187,159 1,036,809 - 87.223 968
Total Capital ASSEtS...ciiivierericeererceeereseeserecessaeaas 91,705,882 1,874,263 469 93,579,676
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements ... e eeeeeeeeeencereaeeecens 38,832 36,149 74,981
B2 1131 14} <O 8,644,622 856,309 9,500,931
Improvements other than buildings........ccecev.. 136,137 16,195 152,332
Machinery and equipment.........ooercreenereraerens 1,866,154 248,215 2,114,369
VEhIClES .ooverssirerineninssssnse s sens s s sene 1,047,870 165,953 1,213,823
Infrastructure 12,412,426 587,128 12,999,554
Total Accumulated Depreciaion .......cococeeeieiceeeeens 24,146,041 1,909,949 - 267,055,990
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net........... 62,041,118 { 873.140) - 61,167,978
Govermnmental Activitics Capital Assets, net ........... $67.550841 S( 35686) % 469 3 67523686
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2004 INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30, 2005

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:

Land ..ot s 74798 g § $ 74,798
Capital Assets. being Depreciated:

BUildings ..o everecrsiiee e ee e s esenns 139,625 139,625

Equipment.......eeveceramecneens 401,232 401,232

Purmnp station .....c.ecveereeenenne 161,702 161,702

Sewer distribution systern 1,152,126 1.152.126
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated .........onuu.. 1,854 685 - - 1,854,685
Total Capital ASSELS. .coeeerreerreersseressiesssiessrseesseenesns 1,620,483 - - 1,928,483
Less Accurnulated Depreciation for:

BUildings......corcrerenerieneenienenereseseeesessssasesssaens 83,920 8,543 92,463

EQUIPIMENIL .ttt eeenns 230,707 21,745 252,452

Pump station ...cc.ceceeeevervenensesnnns 31,330 3,396 34,726

Sewer distribution system.........eevoceeieeecernnee 657,575 20,945 678,520
Total Accumulated Depreciation .......mmecencen. 1.003.532 54,629 - 1,058,161
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net ........... 851.153 ( 54.629) - 796,524
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net........... § 925951 3 54629 § - $ 371322

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

GENETAl GOVEIIINIENE ...uueeeeiercmcoritsemere st serse st sesstssss e be st s stssbanas e seesssmsasssserssrassssinras b 74,842
PUBHEC SATELY vvuvurrecrecrerereeeireersesresnssss et sbeeseses e ses e ssmesssessassessrnsestsssensmessesesenesensesseesen 12,969
PUBLC WOTKS ..ottt e e s s sase s s e b bbb em s et e 801,834
Community services 301,328
BQUCAON ...ttt ecceer st rvnesirssasiresasssess s enssebesess st et st s s s s et b s ebetee e seesem eeemameenen 557,554
Capital assets held by Town's internal service funds are charged to
the various functions based on their usage of the assets .......oeveeeverieeirieersessoeinn 161.421
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental ACHVIHES . ...oc.vvcreerece s rsreranseens 3 1,909949
Business-type Activities:
I ET et r e resirs st e et et e e er s sa b e as s e b e b et a s s et mne et s areenteetsaenerentetseneeaeseneas b 24,341
SOIA WASEE........coveverisiseicise et e e ss s sass s sesis b b sas s et o s s ens e b s errs st sesere b e renias 30.288
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type ACHVIHES v ceeervsenee v iersseisieesesesees e 3 34,629

Construction Commitments

The Town has active construction projects as of June 30, 2005. The projects include the Community
Center. Atyear end, the Town’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Project Commitment
CommUNILY CENLET......coiciiriecicrerrsererirereresresssessessessenssssnssnsssssesesasssessseeenencn $ 153,701



EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables

A summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2005 is as follows:

CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUETO
MAJOR FUND:
GENERAL FUND:

Performance bonds.........ccvcvemeeesinisineisres e erersssssens N/A g $ 354,009

Postemployment healtheare trust ...cooviceeceeceeeereecennns N/A 111,537

Community development fund.......ccoocoonececcncecennas N/A 14,226

Health INSUTANCE.....oveieerecree ettt ettt e N/A 566 237,579

Compensated absences fund ..........coreceerernnrcrrverereennn,s N/A 227,671
TOTAL GENERAL FUND ......ccociirerneareerecssranceneseneees 354,000 591,588
NONMAJOR FUNDS:

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:

Recreation program fund ........cocoveeercrnccvccnceecmernennens Health Insurance 85,030

School cafeteria services fund......cccvveecensseesrececnnnn, Health Insurance 6,227

Community development fund......cceoriniioeieneceee. General Fund 14.226
TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS........coccccoeereeenenes - 105,483
DEBT SERVICE FUND:

Compensated absences fund .......ccvevvcreciccnnnnienieenans General Fund 227671
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS ......coorrerrcercvemneeevecrens - 333.154
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS.....cooce v 354,000 924,742
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS:

Health insurance:

General fUnd.... e e e N/A 237,579 566
Recreation program fund......c.cieiveeeceervcreccvsenene N/A 85,030
School cafeteria services fund........ccccoeeevvevvevvsrnenens N/A 6,227
Mansfield downtown partnership....c.cococereecereeienne. N/A 365
TOTAL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ......ccoeverenrenee. 329.201 566
FIDUCIARY FUNDS:

Mansfield downtown partnership.......ococeicvceicrnniennen Health Insurance 365

Performance bonds......cc.ccevereecevcecmsmecseec e General Fund 354,009

Postemployment healthcare trust ......ovvveevirnenseeieenns General Fund 111,537
TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS ... oeeeeeeevrcecceveeranns 354,009 111,902
GRAND TOTAL ..ottt sssenns $ 1037210 $ 1037210

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the date payments occurred between funds for
short-term internal financing.
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EXHIBITL

HI. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D.

Interfund Accounts (Continued)
2. Interfund Transfers
CORRESPONDING
FUND
MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND:
Capital projects fund ..o R N/A
Capital nonrecurring fund ... ncrsvnneenscnnns N/A
Recreation program fund ... N/A
Other operating funds.......cocmiiiincini e N/A
School cafeteria fund.....co e e N/A
Bond fund. ..ot N/A
TOTAL GENERAL FUND.....corcrrecrrerere e snsssiienns
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:
General fund.... ..o N/A
Capital nonrecurring fund ... N/A
Recreation fund ... s
Management services fund.........ocoeiiiiinicen, N/A
Town aid road fund ... N/A
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ...
NONMAJOR FUNDS:
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
Capital nonrecurring fund:
General fund.......ooooce e N/A
Capital projects N/A
Recreation program fund.......coeuieciirneenrccneiereeeennees N/A
Dbt fUNAS ... N/A
Health insurance fund.... N/A
Management SErvICES ......ocunreecerenerineenrisierranseeeesesenns N/A
Recreation prograrm fund:
General fund........cooooi e N/A
Capital PrOJECtS....c.ooceeeeeereeeeee s et N/A
Capital nonrecurring fiund ......c.ccocovveeererieesceeecenne N/A
Other operating fund:
General fUnM.. .o recrrs e s s N/A
School cafeteria fund:
General fund........ccooreiiiiiiie e
Town aid road fund
TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ...
DEBT SERVICE FUND:
Bond fund:
General fund......cooooeereee s N/A
Capital nonrecurring fund N/A
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND ...ccooviiiecreecrceeeene.
TOTAL NONMAIJOR FUNDS ......oorireccsieneersesieriesasiiens
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IN QuUT
110,000
250,000
35,000
61,500
2,500
400,000
252,500 606,500
110,000
832,137
19,760
28,522
15,000
1,005.419 -
250,000
832,137
80,000
295,000
200,000
200,000
33,000
16,760
80,000
61,500
2,500
15,000
176,500 1,894,397
400,000
285.000
695,000 -
871,500 1.894 397
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HI. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts (Continued)

2. Interfund Transfers (Continued)

CORRESPONDING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FUND IN _OUT
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS:
Management services:
Capital projects fund ..o N/A 3 $ 28,522
Capital nonrecurring fund ..o N/A 200,000
Health insurance fund ......ccooveecemrerencrermnsrecremecessevncneemeene. General Fund 200,000
TOTAL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS .......cccoviviricrnnne 400.000 28,522
GRAND TOTAL c.ci ettt e sassasseanan $ 2529419 § 2529419

Transfers are used to account for the financing by the general fund of various program and activitics
in other funds.

E. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

1. Summary of Changes

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations during the fiscal year:

BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL DATEOQF DATEOQF  INTEREST JULY |, JUNE 30, CURRENT

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 1SSUE MATURITY RATE 2004 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2005 PORTION
BONDS:
General Purpose:

Improvement bond § 225,000 10/15/89 06/15/07  6.75%-6.8% 5 35000 8 $ 15000 § 20000 3 15000

Improvement bond 1,765,000 06/15/92 06/15/05  5.0%-7.0% F15,000 115,000

Refunding bond ... 725,000 02/15/04 06/01/14 2.00-4.00 715,600 80,000 635,000 80,000

Taxable bond ........ 2,590,000 02/15/04 06/01/13 1.32-5.00 2.345.000 225.000 2,120,000 220,000
Total General Purpose 3.210,000 - 435,000 2,775.000 315,000
Schools:

Improvement bond 4,775,000 10/15/89 06/15/09  6.75%-6.8% 1,065,000 285,000 780,000 285,000

Improvement bond 2,525,000 06/15/90 06/15/0% 6.5%-8.0% 575,600 150,000 425,000 25,000

Refunding bond . 940,000 02/15/04 06/01/14 2.00-4.00 930,000 110,060 820,000 105,000
Total Schools........ 2.570.000 - 545.000 2025000 515,000
TOTAL BONDS ..o eesesessresere st e s s eres et eme s 5,780,000 - 980,000 4,800,000 830,000
BOND PREMIUM ..coccciiiniiiminiisnins s s s 12,276 1,228 11,048
DEFERRED CHARGE ON REFUNDING ... ( 186,476} { 18,648) { 167828}
TOTAL BONDS AND RELATED LIABILITIES......ccnviireinsinens 5,605,800 - 962,580 4,643,220 830,000
ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES. ... 1,619,750 865,321 1,426,113 1,058,958 211,792
RETIREMENT BENEFIT ..o ettt et et ssissstsssssassssstsssssssssnsstios 3,074,482 217,130 427,567 2,864,045 370,679
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT OBLIGATION ..o recrememsisinsine 163.812 109.714 273,526
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ....cooiiinnniinsensninns $10463.844 51192165 32816260 5 §839,749 §1412471
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I, DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

Summary of Debt Service Reguirements to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize serial bonds outstanding at June 30, 2003, are as follows:

SCHOOQLS
NET NET
YEAR STATE PRINCIPAL STATE INTEREST  NET DEBT
ENDING REIMBURSE- PAYMENTS TO REIMBURSE- PAYMENTS TO SERVICE TG
JUNE 30 PRINCIPAE MENT MATURITY INTEREST MENT MATURITY MATURITY
2006 § 515,000 § 279,374 $ 235626 $ 106,728 § 51,004 § 55724 5 291,350
2007 500,000 262,724 237,276 75,573 32,738 42,835 280,111
2008 355,000 164,663 190,337 45,312 16,131 29,181 219,518
2009 235,000 99,289 135,711 24913 5,930 18,983 154,694
2010 90,000 90,000 13,388 13,388 103,388
2011 85,000 85,000 10,912 10,912 95,912
2012 85,000 85,000 8,362 8,362 93,362
2013 80,000 80,000 5,600 5,600 85,600
2014 80,000 80,000 2,880 2,880 82,880

3 2,025,000 $ 806,050 5 1,218,950 § 293,608 5 105,803 $ 187,865 § 1406815

GENERAL PURPOSE
TOTAL
YEAR NET DEBT
ENDING SERVICE TO
JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL MATURITY
2006 § 315,000 5 109,961 3 4249061 $ 716,311
2007 305,000 100,909 405,909 686,020
2008 305,000 90,770 395,770 615,288
2009 295,000 79,290 374,290 528,984
2010 365,000 68,540 433,540 536,928
2011 370,000 53,853 423,853 519,765
2012 375,000 37,292 412,292 505,654
2013 380,000 20,300 400,300 485,900
2014 65,000 2,340 67.340 150.220

$.2,775,000 $_ 563,255 3 3338255 3 4,745,070

All Tong-term liabilities, except bonds, are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

State Reimbursement

Amounts in the State reimbursement columns are projected school construction grants to be
received in the years subsequent to June 30, 2005, and represent principal and interest subsidies
from the State of Connecticut.

QOverlapping and Underlyving Indebtedness

Mansfield is a member of Regional School District No.19, along with the towns of Ashford and

Willington.
APPLICABLE TOWN
AMOUNT OF AMOUNTOF  APPLICABLE % OF NET DEBT NET
AUTHORIZED BUT QUTSTANDING GRANTS NET DEBT CHARGEDTO  OVERLAPPING
UNISSUED DERT DEBT RECEIVABLE  QUISTANDING TOQWN DEBT
Regional School
District No.19 b - $22.965,000 $16,099.136 § 6865804 5115 $ 3517451
Prior Year Advance Refunding

In prior year, the Town has defeased a bond issue by creating a separate irrevocable trust fund, New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities that
were placed in the trust fund. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are
sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and, therefore, removed as a liability
from the Town’s financial statements. As of June 30, 2005, the amount of defeased debt outstanding
but removed from the Town’s financial statements amounted to $3,475,000.

2, Staturory Debt Limitations

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by Connecticut
General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule:

CATEGORY DEBT LIMIT _ NET INDEBTEDNESS BALANCE
General purpose $ 41,361,755 3 2,775,000 $ 38,586,755
Scheols 82,723,509 4,736,401 77,987,108
Sewers 68,936,258 68,936,258
Urban renewal 59,744,757 59,744,757
Pension deficit 55,149,006 55,149,006

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from
taxation, $128,681,014.

The indebtedness reflected above includes bonds outstanding in addition to the amount of bonds
authorized and unissued against which bond anticipation notes are issued and outstanding. School
building grants receivable of $806,050 for bond principal are reflected as deductions in the
computation of net indebtedness.

3. Authorized/Unissued Bonds

At June 30, 2005, the Town had no bonds authorized and unissued.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IIIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

E.

Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

4. Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs (Solid Waste Nonmajor Enterprise Fund)

State and Federal laws and regulations require landfill closures to meet certain standards. The
Town is in the process of finalizing an agreement with the State Department of Environmental
Protection for final capping of the landfill. The landfill was covered in November 2004. The
monitoring costs for the next 30 years at $4,000 per year are $120,000. These amounts are based
on estimates which are subject to change due to inflation, technology or applicable laws and
regulations. The liability as described above is recorded in the nonmajor enterprise solid waste
disposal fund.

IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A,

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to public officials and police liability, Board of
Education liability, torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors or omissions, injuries to
employees, and natural disasters. Except for medical insurance, the Town purchases commercial
insurance for all risks of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past
three years. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior
year.

The Mansfield Health Insurance Fund (the Fund), which has been recorded as an Internal Service Fund,
was established to provide hospitalization and medical-surgical health coverage for all Town, Regional
School District No. 19 and Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc. employees. The fund is substantially
funded by the Town’s general fund, and Region 19 based upon estimates for the number of employees
and type of coverage (single or family) and trends in the insurance claims and estimates for
administration. The program's general objectives are to formulate on behalf of the members a health
insurance program at lower costs of coverage and to develop a systematic method to control health
costs.

A third party administers the plan for which the Fund pays a fee. The Fund has purchased aggregate
stop loss coverage at 125 percent of expected claims and individual stop loss coverage of $100,000 per
claim.

The claims hability reported is based upon the provisions of GASB Statements No. 10 and 30, which
require that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is possible that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the possible loss can be reasonably estimated. The amount of claim
accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claim, which includes past experience data, inflation
and other future economic and societal factors and incremental claim adjustment expenses, net of
estimated subrogation recoveries. The claim accrual does not include other allocated or unallocated
claims adjustment expenses.

An analysis of the activity in the claims liability for the health insurance fund is as follows:
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A,

Risk Management (Continued)

CURRENT YEAR
CLADMS CLAIMS AND CLAIMS
PAYABLE CHANGES IN CLAIM PAYABLE
JULY 1 ESTIMATES PAYMENTS JUNE 30
2003-04....eiececrrrernsrns $480,000 54,203,358 $4,203,358 $480,000
2004-05...ooverrrreire s 480,000 4,398,084 4,398,084 480,000

The Town is a member of the Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), an
unincorporated association of Connecticut local public agencies which was formed in 1980 by the
Connecticut Conference of Municipalities for the purpose of establishing and administering an interlocal
risk management program pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-479a et seq. of the Connecticut
General Statutes.

The Town is a member of CIRMA’s Liability-Automobile-Property Pool, a risk-sharing pool. The
Liability-Automobile-Property Pool provides general liability, automobile liability, employee benefit
Hability, law enforcement liability, public officials and property coverage. The premium is subject to
these coverages, and claims and expense payments falling within the deductible amounts are the
responsibility of the Town. CIRMA’s Liability-Automobile-Property Pool retains $1,000,000 per
occurrence for each line of liability coverage.

The Town, including Mansfield Discovery Depot, Inc., is also a member of CIRMA’s Workers’
Compensation Pool, a risk-sharing pool. The Workers’ Compensation Pool provides statutory benefits
pursuant to the provisions of the Connecticut Workers’ Compensation Act. The coverage is subject to
an incurred loss retrospective rating plan, and losses incurred in coverage period 2004-05 will be
evaluated at 18, 30 and 42 months after the effective date of coverage. The premium is subject to
payroll audit at the close of the coverage period. CIRMA’s Workers’ Compensation Pool retains
$1,000,000 per occurrence.

Payments to the Workers” Compensation Pool are made through the workers’ compensation insurance
fund, which has been recorded as an internal service fund. This fund’s general objectives are to
formulate a systematic method to control premium costs.

Commitments and Litigation

The Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, its officers, employees, boards and commissions are defendants in a
number of lawsuits. It is the opinion of the Town Attorney that pending actions will not be finally
determined so as to result individually or in the aggregate in a final judgment against the Town which
would materially adversely affect its financial position.

The Town has received financial assistance from numerous Federal and State agencies in the form of
grants and entitlements. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires
compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the
General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, liabilities resulting
from disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material effect on the Town’s financial statements.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IVv. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C. Pension Plans

1. Municipal Employees’ Retirement Fund

a.

Plan Description

All Town employees participate in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS).
MERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement
system (PERS) established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the State
Retirement Commission to provide pension benefits for the employees of participating
municipalities. The Pension Commission makes recommendations for plan provisions which
are approved by the Board of Finance. MERS is considered to be a part of the State of
Connecticut’s financial reporting entity and is included in the State's financial reports as a
pension trust fund. MERS issues a publicly available financial report which may be obtained by
writing to the State of Connecticut Retirement and Benefit Services Division, Office of the State
Comptrolier, 55 Elm Street, Hartford, CT 06106.

Plan Provisions

Plan provisions are set by Statute of the State of Connecticut. MERS provides retirement
benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after 10 years of continuous
service. Members who retire after age 55 with 10 years of service or after 25 years of service,
irrespective of age, are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are required by State Statute to contribute 2 1/4% of earnings upon which
Social Security tax is paid, plus 5% of earnings on which no Social Security tax is paid. Each
participating municipality is required to coniribute the amounts necessary to finance the
remaining costs of the plan.

The required and actual contributions for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were
$119,466, $284,070 and $350,952, respectively.

2. Postemployment Healthcare Trust Fund

a.

Plan Description

Summary

The Town administers a Postemnployment Healthcare Plan. The plan is included in the financial
statements as a postemployment healtheare trust fund. The plan does not.issue a stand alone
financial report. Plan confribution requirements and benefits are established by collective
bargaining agreements with Local 531 (police) employees, Local 760 employees, public works
employees and nonunion adminisirative employees.

1. Classes of Emplovees Covered

The Postemployment Healthcare Trust Fund membership consisted of 34 active
employees at June 30, 2005.
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EXHIBIT L

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C. Pension Plans (Continued)

2. Postemployment Healthcare Trust Fund (Continued)

@

Plan Description (Continued)

il.

Benefit Provisions

Employees covered by the above agreements are eligible for benefits when they retire from
the Town, on or after attaining the age of 55 years, or upon completing 25 years of
aggregate service provided such employee has had ten years of continuous service or fifieen
years of aggregate service, or upon receiving a disability retirement under MERS B.
Effective July 1, 1991, the benefit the Town would have paid eligibie employees toward the
cost of medical insurances was the greater of 35% of single premium on PPO plan or $75
per month, $100 per month for police retirees. Currently, there are 14 employees who meet
the eligibility requirements and have begun to collect this benefit.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

i.

1i.

Basis of Accounting

The Postemployment Healthcare Trust Fund’s financial statements are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues (contributions and investment income) are
recognized when they are earned and expenses (benefits) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with terms of the plan.

Valuation of Investments

Investments are valued at fair value. Securities fraded on national exchanges are valued at
the last reported sales price. There are no investments in any organization that represent 5%
or more of net assets available for benefits.

Contributions

1.

1l

Employer

The Town’s contribution is funded on an annual basis by general fund appropriations. The
Town’s contribution was $40,000 for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Emplovee

There is o required participant contribution.

D. On-Behalf Payments

The amount recognized in the general fund intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures for
contributions made by the State on behalf of the Town’s teachers to the Connecticut State Teachers’
Retirement System was $368,993.
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E. Restatements

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The beginning net assets for the business-type activities were restated as follows:

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
Net assets, June 30, 2004, as previously reported .................. $ 1,342,925
To record landfill post-closure monitoring cost liability........ ( 120.000)
Net assets, July 1, 2004, as restated .........ocoeoeeeeeceveccrrnreecenes $ 1222925

Fund Financial Statements:

Beginning net assets of the nonmajor business-type activities were restated as follows:

SOLID WASTE
DISPOSAL FUND
Net Assets as of June 30, 2004 ... $ 306,788
To record landfill post-closure monitoring cost liability........ { 120.000)
Net Assets as of July 1, 2004 ... b 186,788

6o




Supplemental
Schedules



... ]
General
Fund

The general fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund accounts for the normal recurring
activities of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, public works, health, social services, recreation,
education, etc.). These activities are funded principally by property taxes, user fees and grants from other
governmental units.
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SCHEDULE 3

(1 of3)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
PROPERTY TAXES:
Current year levy $ 17,843,985 3§ 17,843,985 § 17,859,033 § 15,048
Prior year levy......... 140,000 140,000 198,171 58,171
Interest and lien fEes....cocveiiiee i, 90,000 90,000 133,962 43,962
Motor vehicle supplement.........coooveeeveeecieeceseeeen, 245,000 245,000 231,245 {13,755)
Suspense collections taxes...... . 6,500 6,500 6,923 423
Suspense collections INterest. .o e veereereeeeeeeernne 4,000 4,000 4,834 834
Motor vehicle penalty. 300 300 5 (295)
Telecom Services PAYMENt......cococvvevvirererrrrnrrerrsrssneres 120,000 120,000 137,664 17,664
TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES . 18,449,785 18,449,785 18,571,837 122,052
INTERGOVERNMENTAL:
STATE:
BOARD OF EDUCATION:
Education assistance..........ceeevreereereemeeemreesanens 8,440,750 8,440,790 8,522,648 81,858
School transportation.........cocvvv s 260,000 260,000 239,570 {20,430)
TOTAL BOARD OF EDUCATION........... 8,700,790 8,700,790 8,762,218 61,428
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
PILOT - State property.....occevvvieneinenennnne. 5,945,550 6,286,208 6,343,657 57,449
CIrcuit breaker. oo 32,000 32,000 34,164 2,164
Tax relief for elderly freeze 2,300 2,300 2,771 471
Library - connecticard........ccocereeeeeereecreemsncnne. 6,600 6,600 12,261 5,661
Library - Basic grant.......oooeeeeeersreeeeeersrneen 2,000 2,000 2,538 538
Tax credit - new manufacturing equipment...... 6,200 6,200 8274 2,074
Boat reimbursement 2,500 2,500 2,503 3
Civil preparedngss..........coovvvveveneinesrnensrseneenns 6,520 6,520 16,436 9,916
Veterans' reimbursement 4,000 4,000 4467 467
PILOT - Holinko Estates...........covvvevvnneans 18,581 18,581
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT........ 6,007,670 6,348,328 6,445,652 97,324
FEDERAL:
In Heut Of tAXES.....oeeeeeeee ettt 1,850 1,850 2,460 610
Social service block grant 3,720 3,720 931 (2,789)
TOTAL FEDERAI 5,570 5,570 3,391 (2,179)
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL.......coocnviiiriiinins 14,714,030 15,054,688 15,211,261 156,573
INVESTMENT INCOME.....cocoerrrereirrerenee e 200,000 200,000 173,845 (26,155)
{Continued)
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SCHEDULE 3

2of3)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (CONTINUED)
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
CHARGES FOR SERVICES:
Data processing - COVENLIY.........ocuvnisnnnnnsnsesiesnns L 15,000 3 15000 % 15,000 % -
Data processing - Region No. 19.......ccoevviverererinennns 9,500 9,500 9,500 -
Region No. 19 financial services 66,730 66,730 66,730 -
Health district SeTVICES.....ccevvvvrreire e 5,150 5,150 5,150 -
Rccordmg 90,000 90,000 88,364 {1,636)
Copies of records............ 14,300 14,300 15,745 1,445
Vital statistics... 4,000 4,000 4,854 854
Sale of maps/regulanons 200 200 106 94)
Police service.. 45,000 45,000 98,747 53,747
Canine fees.......... 1,600 1,600 3,267 1,667
Animal adoptlon fees ..................................... 1,025 1,025 1,609 584
Feline fees. . .oovvrree e 600 600 188 (412)
Health district reimbursement 6,100 6,100 6,100 -
Postage on overdue hooks.. ... 15,000 15,000 15417 417
Blueprints.... 50 50 73 23
Region No. 19 grounds mamtenance .......................... 67,200 67,200 67,370 170
Celeron square b1kepath MAINENANCE.......coccceeeerennne 2,700 2,700 (2,700
Zoning regulations.........coevevmsesnreenmnnsnnnnns 500 500 516 16
Daycare grounds mamtenance 9,320 9,320 9,320 -
Licenses and Permifs........ocoveevininneeseeseceeneeesseenes 2,200 2,200 2,245 45
Sport licenses............... 700 700 550 (150)
Dog licenses......... 8,000 8,000 7,669 {331)
CONVEYANCE tAX......covvrererrrrmsmssssssssissssssasasssssmmssesssesesens 40,000 40,000 231,379 191,379
Trailer and subdmsmn permits 3,500 3,500 8,300 4,800
ZONINZ PEIMILS.....coesceerreereresssnnes s ssssssssssse s essiseneene 14,500 14,500 22,390 7,890
ZBA applications........................................................ 1,500 1,500 690 (810)
IWA permits 4,000 4,000 4,350 350
SEWET PEIMILS.......ciccrr e 50 50 50 -
Road permits........ccovrrcrinnan 1,600 1,600 2,535 935
Building permits.... 200,000 200,000 324,222 124,222
Administrative cost rctmb penmts ........................... 50 50 144 94
Parking tickets - TOWN...v..oecceeeeeececeece e 4,000 4,000 6,265 2,265
Parking tickets - complus............ccoceeniiiinnn, 2,000 2,000 5,680 3,680
Building fines.....c......ooooiiiii e 250 250 (250)
Rent - Region No. 19 maintenance........ccoovinneeneee. 2,660 2,660 2,660 -
Rent - Historical SOCIELY....comererserisreectereeeoee e 1,200 1,200 1,950 750
Rent - Animal control......... 4,660 4,660
Rent - Town hall....cocoeeeeereee e 300 300 425 125
Rent - senior center.. 250 250 60 {190)
General assistance - 1nd1V1duals .................................. 100 100 (100)
Equipment maintenance....oo i, 4,720 4,720
Circuit court - parking fees.........covvcervecerrererreerresrsnnns 695 695
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES.......cccoooeirenee. (40,835 640,835 1,039,695 398,860
{Continued)
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SCHEDULE 3

(30f3)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (CONCLUDED)
VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES:

OHBEL . eevee et s et m e e ee st rrersserenesenesenens 3 7800 § 7,800 % 4,886 3 (2,914
TOTAL REVENUES.......cot ettt et et 34,012,450 34,353,108 35,001,524 648,416
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfers in:

Capital nonrecurring fund...........c..coovvvirimrersrevrrerien: 350,000 350,000 250,000 (100,000)
School cafeteria fund..........ccoevvvecviemneren e 2,500 2,500 2,500 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES...................... 352,500 352,500 252,500 {100,000)
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES.......ococeeceeeecrerervcrvrvssrorsernessenenns § 34,364,950 % 34,705,608 3 35254024 § 548,416
{Concluded)
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SCHEDULE 4

(1 of2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT.
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
ADDITIONS VARIANCE
(REDUCTIONS) WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL FINAL
APPROPRIATION TRANSFERS APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Town council:
Legislative.,, 1y 56,990 3 1,354 s 58,344 58,344 -
Town manager:

Municipal t 179,510 14,817 194,327 194,327 -

Personnel 60,970 19,522 80,492 80,492 -
12,000 26,876 38,876 38,876 -
2370 673 3,043 3,043 -

Elections:

Regi 21,700 10,815 38,515 38,515 -
Town clerk, 172,850 3,234 176,084 176,084 -
General elections 16,050 288 16,338 16,338 -

Finance:
Administration 62,770 405 63,175 63,175 -

Accounting and dishursement: 224,780 14,913 239,693 239,693 -
Reveaue collection 131,300 7,573 138,873 138,873 -
Property xent 162,380 8.211 171,091 171,091 -
Central COpYing.......ocoee.. - 40,000 {510) 39,090 39,090 -
Central services.,, 33,600 {5,166) 28,434 28,434 -
Data processing... 96,380 {2,768) 94,112 94,112 -

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT........ 1,280,650 99,837 1,380,487 1,380,487 -
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police protection:
Police services 693,460 61,988 755,448 755,448 -
Animal control...... ..o eesrosirin e 80,710 (252) 80,458 80,458 -
Fire protection:
Fire marshal.........ccomnrreene 95,300 9,122 104,422 104,422 -
.Fire and emergency services admin,........... 87,390 28,074 115,464 115,464 -
Fire and emergency services 1,425,610 (160,725) 1,264,335 1,264,885 -
Emergency t 26,840 1,933 28,773 28,773 -
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFET Y wocomererecieemveens 2,408,310 (59,860) 2,349,450 2,349,450 -
PUBLIC WORKS:
Admini ion 154,280 1,224 155,504 155,504 -
Operating services:
Supervision and operation.. 62,050 7.601 69,651 69,651 .
631,250 (35,801) 595,449 595,449 -
Grounds mai . 271,400 (19,519 251,881 251,881 -
Equipment maintenance.....c..cveeeceeceveenensvennres 306,640 52,995 358,635 359,635 -
Engineering..... 90,010 187 190,197 190,197 -
Buildings:
Building inspection 118,860 4,084 122,944 122,944 -
Building Maintenance. ... .. oo ceseeeerens 483.850 24,329 508,179 508,179 -
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS......c.coocvemreriereanne 2,218,340 35,100 2,251,440 2,253,440 -
(Coatinued)
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SCHEDULE 4

(20f2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES (CONCLUDED)
ADDITIONS VARIANCE
(REDUCTIONS) WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL FINAL
APPROPRIATION TRANSFERS APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET
COMMUNITY SERVICES:
Health regulation and inspection. ., s 1,000 3 (1,000) s H -
Sacial service administration 224,170 (2,565} 221,605 221,605 -
Mansfield challenge - winter... 2430 184 2,614 2014 -
Peer outreach .......ooovveeene 360 (360} -
Youth employment - middle school... 4,000 15 4,015 4015 -
Youth services. . 122,670 (4,126} 118,544 118,544 -
Senior services.. 169,260 1,042 170,302 170,302 -
Library administration., 509,130 (5,648) 503,982 503,982 -
Recreation administraticn 122,040 17,663 139,703 139,703 -
Contribution to area agencies. 274,280 (5.095) 269,183 269,185 -
TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES.................. 1429340 610 1,429,950 1.429.950 “
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:
Planning administration........... 207,470 (3,462) 204,008 204,008 -
Planning/zoning inland/wetland.. 22,350 {1,903) 20,447 20,447 -
Boards and ¢ommissions,, ., 54,050 1,016 55066 55.066 -
TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT........... 283,870 {4,349 278,521 276,521 -
TOWNWIDE EXPENDITURES:
Employee benefits, ..o vvevovvrenvrrsnnen s ssner s 1,418,330 234,496 1,652,826 1,652,826 -
Medical Pension Trust.... 40,000 40,000 40,000 -
Pension Pian-Vol. Fire. 35,000 {35,600) -
Insurance...........oeeuenee 111,000 8,324 119,324 119,324 .
COMIIMBENEY .ot iutre e iee e ciaree e e e ree v e emmeeeneeanns o 8,500 {8.500} -
TOTAL TOWNWIDE EXPENDITURES............ 1,572,830 239,320 £.812,150 1,812,150 -
TOTAL TOWN EXPENDITURES. ................... $.194.340 310,658 9.504,998 9,504,998 -
EDUCATION:
Contribution to Regian Na.19 board of education.. 7,728,080 7,128,080 7,728,080 -
Mansfield board of education, 16,865,030 16,866,030 16.862.424 1,506
TOTAL EDUCATION. ..o 24,594,110 - 24.594.110 24.590.504 3.606
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......cooiiiiviimeiees 33,788,450 310,658 34,099,108 34,093,502 3.606
OTHER FINANCING USES:
“Transfers out:
Capitzal projects fund - town... 20,000 20,600 20,000 -
Capital projecis fund - board 20,000 90,000 20,000 -
Special revenue funds:
Recreation program fund. ... 25,000 10,000 35,000 35,000 -
Qther operating funds - town.. 15,500 15,500 15,500 -
Other operating funds - board. 46,000 46,000 46,000 -
Bond fumd....cooocveeieiiins 400,000 400,000 400,000 -
TOTAL QTHER FINANCING USES................. 576,500 30.000 606.500 606,500 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHE
FINANCING USES.......o.ccviiiiiiiiicnn i eeeaeeeae e 3 34,364,950 3 340,658 $ 34,705,608 5 34,702,002 3,606
{Concluded)
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SCHEDULE 5

TOWNROF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE GF BOARD OF EDUCATION EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

ADDITIONS VARIANCE
(REDUCTIONS) WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL FINAL
APPROPRIATION TRANSFERS APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET
EXPENDITURES:
Regular instruction.. 3 6,597,760 % {135,794) 5 6,461,566 3 6,451,566 -
English " 58,850 (4,542) 54,308 54,308 -
World Janguages........cvvienenssrn L1,710 {591) 11,119 11,119 -
Health and safety..... 10,870 {4.422) 6,448 6,448 -
Physical education. 14,750 (743) 14,047 14,048 [43]
Art 12,970 (1,357) 11,613 11,613 -
Mathematic 28,490 4,762) 23,728 23,728 -
17,490 {174) 17,316 17,316 -
27,570 (2,821 24,749 24,749 .
19,850 (696) 19,164 19,164 -
Computer education. 131,060 12,313 143,373 143,373 -
Family and cc seienee 8,150 (809) 7,341 7,341 -
Technology ed ITS)» IR 8,450 326 8,776 8,776 -
Special &d IMSTUCHON «.coeeeceemeceeremeerecvereene 1,352,490 {55,085) 1,297,405 1,297,405 -
Enrict t. 246,130 {11,510) 234,629 234,620 B
Preschool 280,740 (5,676) 285,064 285,064 -
Remedial education 312,990 (£30,956) 182,034 182,034 -
Summer school free only (EDOO....icvciinn 34,000 (1,430) 32,570 32,570 -
Tuition payments. 170,000 57,620 227,620 227,620 -
Central service - instructional supplies.... 157,620 (10,731} 146,389 146,889 -
Guidance services 148,160 (27,651} 120,509 120,509 -
Health services 187,140 (1,444} 185,695 185,696 -
Occupational and physical therapy. 141,000 (3,037) 137,963 137,963 -
Speech and hearing services. 1E1,420 (3,333) 108,087 108,087 -
Pupil services - lesting, 21,570 (7,605} 13,965 13,965 -
Psychological services - S. 297,050 (2,218) 294,872 294,873 (n
Curriculum development.... 195,720 (,112) 186,608 186,608 -
Professional development., 33,080 (5,967) 27,113 27,113 -
Media services, 22,010 (468} 21,544 21,544 -
Library. 230,210 187 230,397 230,397 -
Board of education....ceccv e eceerees e 319,490 32,246 351,736 358,736 -
Superintendent's office. 301,630 (22,403) 279,227 279,227 -
Special education admin, 231,530 (19,228) 212,302 212,302 -
Principals' office 799,230 (13,323) 785,927 785,927 -
Support services - central 17,450 {966) 16,484 16,484 -
Field swudies.. 13,000 {504) 12,396 12,396 -
Business management 252,690 212 252,902 252,902 -
Plant operations - building.. 1,116,100 228,170 1,344,270 1,344,270 -
Regputlar transportation 579,070 36,524 615,594 615,594 -
Special education transporiation 60,000 109,209 165,209 169,208 1
After school program 20,950 (2,873) 18,077 18,077 -
Athletic program. 22,920 {2,088) 20,832 20,832 -
Employee benefits... 2,232,560 17,610 2,250,170 2,246,563 3,607
TOTAL EXPENDITURES..........coovaeeen 16,866,030 - 16,866,030 16,862,424 3,606
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out:
Capital Projects Fund.......cumnnna o 904,000 90,000 90,000 -
Other operating funds............covvvrvmreees 46,000 46,000 46,000 .
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES............ 136,060 - 136,000 136,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES..... e b 17,002,050 3 - 3 17,002,030 3 16,998,424 3,606
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Capital Projects
Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for major capital asset

construction and/or purchase.




SCHEDULE 7

of2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
CAFITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF CUMULATIVE PROJECT REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005
PRICR YEAR CURRENT YEAR CUMULATIVE
PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT VARIANCE
REVENUES REVENUES REVENUES WITH
PROJECT AND OTHER AND OTHER AND CTHER PROJECT

APPROPRIATION FINANCING SOURCES FINANCING SOURCES FINANCING SOURCES APPROPRIATION

‘Town hall additional parking, s 60,600 $ 60,000 $ s 60,000 $ -
Landscape public building 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
0ld town hall repairs....... 16,500 16,500 16,500 -
Community Ceater Aschitectual Study,, 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Pool Car 2004/2005,.. 20,022 15817 15,817 (4,205)
Town hall furnishings, 90,824 85,839 4,985 90,824 -
‘Water supply study, $0,000 90,000 90,000 -
Lands of unique value study, 55,500 55,000 500 55,500 -
Operating system software upgrade 30,860 25,000 5,360 30,860 -
Employee classification study......... 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Plan of conservation and developmen 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Assisted living facility study, 25,000 25,000 25,000
Reptace engine 107/117 752,230 350,000 102,431 452,431 (299,799)
Palice cruiser 2004/2005., 28,500 28,500 28,500 -
Hazardous waste traiber... . 15,000 15,000 15,000 -
PERS alert alarm safety 85,108 85,108 85,108 -
Air bags and foam tank repair.. 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Radio equipment.... e 95,995 95,996 95,996 -
Fire ponds. 15,500 15,500 15,500 -
Roof repd 97,500 95,000 2,500 97,500 -
Small bridges and culverts. 261,084 261,084 261,084 -
Large bridge maintenance. . 453,236 478,236 (25,000} 453,236 -
Town walkways . §5,000 705,000 (620,000) 85,000 -
Road drainage. 320,311 345,311 (25,000} 320,311 -
Maple road drainage, 404,800 178,064 78,411 256,475 {148,325)
Birchroad T.EP.. 826,880 289,729 338,426 628,155 (198,725)
24,197 29,197 (5,000) 24,197 -
Mansfield center T.E.P... 390,000 286,384 286,384 (103,516}
Maple road reconstruction. 1,272,000 115,000 115,000 {1,157,000)
Road resurfacing 648,677 415,000 235,000 650,000 1,323
Clover Miil Road reclzim.. 144,200 33,400 33,400 (£10,800)
Scparatist Road bikeway... 750,000 650,000 650,000 (100,000)
Large dump truck. 90,058 95,000 {4,942) 90,058 -
Grounds tractor..........coue e ae 24,579 24,579 24,579 -
Pickup tnxk.... 35,000 35,000 35,000 -
Truck tractor.... 40,219 40,219 40,219 -
Snowplows.... e 12,472 6,972 5,500 12,472 -
Engineering CAD upgrades., 93,500 78,500 15,600 93,500 -
Mapping workstation and software. 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
Tree replacement, ..., .o.uv.eennn 15,000 10,000 5,000 15,000 -
Storrs center area imprevement... 450,000 450,000 450,000 -
MDP sevital and enhancement.... 640,000 169,102 118,980 288,082 (351,918)
MD? legal and consulting, 35,000 35,000 35,000
Library floor and stage... 32,085 36,318 (4,733} 32,085 -
Library chimney... 12,079 20,600 (7,921) 12,079 -
ADA comgpliance.. 25000 25,000 25,000 -
Senior center equipment. 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Carpet extracting machine.... 5000 5,000 5,000 -
Lions club park 517,000 517,000 517,000 -
Open space purchase.. 3,143,855 3,143,355 3,143,855 -
Plains Road reconstruction area.. 40,000 25,000 25,000 (15,000}
Community center... ............... 7,765,000 7,765,000 7,765,000 -
Community center walking track, 325,000 44,000 30,000 74,000 (251,000)
Community center equipment, 50,000 50,000 50,000 -

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE 7

(2 of2)

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - SCHEDULE OF CUMULATIVE PROJECT REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONCLUDED)

PRIOR YEAR CURRENT YEAR CUMULATIVE
PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT VARIANCE
REVENUES REVENUES REVENUES WITH
PROJECT AND OTHER AND OTHER AND OTHER PROJECT

APPROPRIATION FINANCING SOURCES  FINANCING SOURCES ~ FINANCING SOURCES APPROPRIATION

Park improvements............ s 143,000 8 133000 S 10,000 5 148,000 $ -
Playground resurfacing... 27,000 22,000 5,000 27,000 -
Southeast park improvement.. 14,000 14,060 14,000 -
Maintenance shop windows.. 57,500 57,500 57,500 -
MMS kitchen modifications.. 43,800 9,760 9,760 (39,040)
Deferred maintenance projects.. 410,000 10,000 10,600 (400,000)
MMS stage curtains. .. ......... 30,000 10,000 10,000 (20,000)
Sautheast heiler replacement. 309,936 211,436 98,500 309,936 -
Elementary scheal shelving 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Modular classrooms... ... ... 10,000 10,000 10,000 B
Middle schoal snowblower, 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Technology upgrade... ... 50,000 25,000 25,000 50,000 -
TOTAL. .. ot ie ittt e e e e e e e e e e 3 21.335.008 & 16,901,027 § 1,735876 § 18,636,903 & (3,]93,105!

{Concluded}
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SCHEDULE §

(Eof2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF CUMULATIVE FROJECT EXPENDITURES AND QTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2005
PRIOR YEAR CURRENT YEAR CUMULATIVE
PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT VARIANCE
EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES WITH
PROJECT AND OTHER AND OTHER AND OTHER PRGIECT
APPROPRIATION FINANCING USES FINANCING USES FINANCING USES APPROPRIATION
Town hall additional parking. 3 60,000 5 60,000 3 3 60,000 3 -
Landscape public buildings 50,000 41,992 7467 49,459 541
Old town hall repairs... 16,500 16,327 16,327 73
Community center architectuzl study 10,000 11,180 1,180 (1,180)
Pool car 2004/2005.... 20,022 20,022 20,022 -
Town hall fumishings., 90,824 86,053 4,71 00,824 -
Water supply study...... 90,000 50,010 2,035 52,045 37,955
Lands of unique value study. 55,500 55,500 55,500 -
Operating system softwarc upgrade.. 30,860 25,115 5,745 30,360 -
Employee classification study....... 20,000 7,658 6,217 13,875 6,125
Plan of conservation and development.. 10,000 3,933 3,933 6,067
Assisted living facility study..... 235,000 - 25,000
Replace engine 107/117 752,230 733,187 20,465 753,652 (1,422
Police cruiser 2004/2005.......ccc v vvvvee e 28,500 25,390 25,390 3,110
Hazardous waste trailer,, 15,000 11,208 11,208 3,792
PERS alert safety system.... 85,108 85,108 85,108 -
Airbags and tank repair..........ois e e s 20,060 - 20,000
Radic equipment................. 95,996 95,008 95,008 988
Firc ponds . 15,500 6,85] 1,026 7,877 7,623
Roof repl 97,500 86,123 15,198 102,321 (4,321}
Small bridges and culverts.......ocveceeeecee e 261,084 199,340 1,186 200,526 60,558
Large bridge maintenance 453,236 258,574 5,615 265,189 188,047
Town walkways. 85,000 136,186 (19,213) 116,973 (31,973)
Road drainage.... 329,311 134,441 184,441 135,870
Maple road drainage 404,800 98,020 3,846 101,866 302,934
Birch road T.E.P....coccverrvienerennns 826,880 138,918 564,425 703,343 123,537
Guard rails.......... 24,197 21,316 2,046 23,362 835
Mansfield center TEP.... 390,000 355,577 355,577 34,423
Maple road reconstruction.. 1,272,000 85,738 5,829 91,567 1,180,433
Road resurfacing, 648,677 392,943 255,734 648,677 -
Clover Mill Road reclaim........... 144,200 849 849 143,351
Separatist Road bikeway 750,000 55,636 55,636 694,364
Large dump truck 90,058 275 89,733 90,058 “
Grounds ragtor.. . o e v e e e e e 24,579 24,579 24,57% -
Pickup truck.. 35,000 34,904 34,904 96
Truck tractor.. 40,219 40,219 40,219 -
Snowplows 12,472 6,972 6,972 5,500
Engineering CAD upgradcs 93,500 54,671 5,557 60,228 33,272
Mapping workstation/software.. 120,000 80,261 1E,072 91,333 28,667
Tres replacement... 15,000 3,679 3,679 11,321
Storrs center arca 1mpmvcmcnt 450,000 102,646 102,646 347,354
MDP revital and enhancement.. 640,000 175,887 112,194 288,081 351,919
MDP legal and consulting. 35,000 19,629 19,629 15,371
Library floor and stage. 32,085 32,085 32,085 -
Library chimney.....oooooveieeeev e 12,079 469 £1,610 12,079 -
ADA compliance... ... oo ceiiini i 25,000 1,667 344 2,011 22,989
Senior center equipment.. 30,000 21,222 5,172 26,394 3,606
Carpet extracting machine..... 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Lions club park... 517,000 411,944 411,944 105,056
Open space purchﬂse 3,143,855 2,558,437 28,871 2,587,308 556,547
Plains Road recnns!rucuon area, 40,000 40,000
Community center... . . 7,765,000 7,808,406 72,035 7,380,441 (115,441)
Community center wa]kmg lrack 325,000 277,618 277,618 47,382
Community center equipment... ... co.coeeresre s 50,000 6,987 12,989 19976 34,024
(Continued)
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - SCHEDULE OF CUMULATIVE PROJECT EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {CONCLUDED)

SCHEDULE 8

(2of2)

EXPENDITURES

APPROPRIATION FINANCING USES

CURRENT YEAR
PROJECT
EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

EXPENDITURES

FINANCING USES

VARIANCE

FROJECT
APPROPRIATION

Park improvements.................oeel
Playground resurfacing...
Southeast park improvement.. -
Southcast park playscape.........oiveiinenen.
WMTC River greenway.............
New wells - schoofs.
MMS kitchen modifications... ........
Deferred mainienance projects
Elementary school shelving. ..
PA system - efementary schools.
MMS auditorium renovations, .
Technology upgrade...........................

15,030
8,932

37,049
21,238

114,134
12,775

4,539
12,180

8,604

3,687
14,000
20,451
48,800

388,762

18,977
82,560
(2,775
10,000
45461
25,112

1,908,888

5,083,632

(Concluded)




Enterprise
Funds

Enterprise funds are proprietary funds used to report an activity for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods and services.

Sewer Operating Fund

To account for sewer services provided by the University of Connecticut and the Willimantic Water Company to
certain residents of the Town. All activities necessary to provide services are accounted for in this fund.

Solid Waste Disposal Fund

To account for solid waste management for the Town. All the activities necessary fo provide such services are
accounted for in this fund. It is the intention of management that disposal fees will pay the cost of the tipping fees
at the various disposal sites in use.



SCHEDULE 9
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

ENTERPRISE FUND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
BY CUSTOMER
JUNE 30, 2003

UCONN WILLIMANTIC TOTAL

Current assets:
INVESHMENLS.......cooviecre e vrresremrr s rensres s eressssnsessens £ 22,140 3 343,000 $ 365,140
Accounts receivable...... ... vrnrere - 45,711 45,711

Total current assets........oovcieiivniesr s 22,140 388,711 410,851

Noncurrent assets:
Accounts 1eCeiVabIE. ... oo vvervene s 1,685 1,685

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land. .. ..o 3,000 63,298 66,298
Pump station.............c..oooiii e 126,976 126,976
Sewer distribution system............................. 166,803 306,803 473,606

Total capital asscts {net of accumulated
depreciation).. ... eurcreerirninesi s srsre s senes 296,779 370,101 666,880

Total nONCUITENE ASSEIS...cvivercrimreeriimressemseerisasessssasesans 296,779 371,786 668,565

TOTAL ASSETS...n st san s naes 318,919 760,497 1,079,416

LIABILITY

Curent labilities:
Accounts payable.... ... 17,513 17,513

NET ASSETS
Invested In capital 8SSE15.....uuriinesresnisenessssnessssranseans 296,779 370,101 666,880
Unrestricted. ..o 22,140 372,883 395,023

TOTAL NET ASSETS........iiiii i s b 318,919 $ 742,984 5 1,061,903

74



TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
SEWER OPERATING FUND

BY CUSTOMER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

SCHEDULE 10

UCONN WILLIMANTIC TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES:
SeWET CHATEES. ..ot vemricnrintsre e meae e e $ 80,000 5 98,000 178,000
O TEVEIUES. ..ottt e eraas 968 968
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES..........ccoovvrrrrernrerieens 30,000 98,968 178,968

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Sewer bIllings. ... e 53,344 54,568 107,912
Supplies and services. 20,949 20,949
Depreciation............cocr e, 10,068 14,273 24,341
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.......ocovrvrenrrsnrisnrarnans 84,361 68,841 153,202
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ... oo naenes (4,361) 30,127 25,766
TOTAL NET ASSETS -JULY 1,2004 ..........ccoeiiinrians 323,280 712,857 1,036,137
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2005.....ovieevineeee e 3 318,919 3 742,984 1,061,903
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.
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

Capital Nonrecurring Fund

This fund was established pursuant to Connecticut State law as a reserve fund for future capital projects.

Educational Grants Fund

This fund is utilized to control the operation of various State and Federal educational grant programs. Most grants
are received from the State of Connecticut Department of Education.

Recreation Program Fund

This fund was established to record the activity of various recreation programs sponsored by the Town.

Other Operating Funds

Miscellanecus programs of the Town are accounted for in this fund.

School Cafeteria Fund

The general operations of the public school cafeteria program are controlled through this fund. Grants received
through the State of Connecticut Department of Education for school lunch program activities are recorded in this
fund along with the sale of food and the related expenditures associated with the program.

Town Aid Road Fund

The administration of the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation Town Aid Road program is
controlled through this fund.

Community Development Fund

This fund was established to record the activity under the Community Development Block Grant program.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

Debt Service Funds

Bond Fund

This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs.

Compensated Absences Fund

This fund is used to account for the accurnulation of resources for, and the payment of, accrued compensated
absences.

Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs.

Cemetery Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses dealing with the operation of all the active and inactive
cemeteries in Town. :

Local School Fund

Income from this fund is restricted to use for school purposes.
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SCHEDULE 14
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL NONRECURRING FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

VARIANCE
WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental...........coccooeevvivrsimnsresnn 3 1,764,300 $ 1,764,300 § 1,339.206 § (425,094)
Investment NCOME. ........vurveerirrissssssssenseserenresceemseen 100,000 100,000 100,000 -
Charges for ServiCes......oovvecemoeerereereevesveseereesenee 330,000 330,000 330,582 582
Other local TeVenuEs. ........ooovvceverrereeceeeeeeee e 3,000 3,000 (3,000)
TOTAL REVENUES.......ccooieerev vt riarnersnnens 2,197,300 2,197,300 1,769,788 (427,512)
EXPENDITURES:
Community SErvICES. .. ... .oo et it rrr i ain seres 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES.........ooccociiiiiiei e e 2,187,300 2,187,300 1,759,788 (427,512)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of fund balance.. 364,500 364,500 (364,500)
Transfers out.........ocoovevee e (2,451,800) (2,451,800) (1,857,137) 594,663
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)....... (2,087,300) (2,087,300) (1.857,137) 230,163
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE................... 3 100,000 § 100,000 (97,349) § (197,349)
FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2004.....cccoiteineee. 304,825
FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2005.....ccocviviinnnae 3 207,476
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. |
Internal Service
Funds
]

Internal Service funds are used to account for the providing of goods or services provided by one department to
other departments of the Town on a cost reimbursement basis or accounting for risk retention as allowed by
GASB Statement No. 10.

Health Insurance Fund

To account for the provision of Health Insurance for the Town. All activities necessary to provide such coverage
are accounted for in this fund.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance Fund

To account for the provision of Workers’ Compensation Insurance for the Town. All activities necessary to
provide such coverage are accounted for in this fund.

Management Services Fund

To account for the provision of land, buildings, equipment and related supplies which benefit Town departments
and schools.




SCHEDULE 16

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2005
WORKERS'
HEALTH COMPENSATION MANAGEMENT
INSURANCE INSURANCE SERVICES TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
INVESITIEIIES. cueseeve e vveevervsserrerverrsssssrrasvssrsrrersnsrssrnnessnnss $ 303,956 3 996 3 434376 § 739,328
135,812 135,812
329,201 329,201
17,865 17,865
Total CUITENE BSSEES..u.viivecrrrrrarimreesree s ineasioneeseanee e onasnenans 768,969 996 452,241 1,222,206
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
1 T 145,649 145,649
Construction in progress.......cvveeeiinneicnninnen, 48,663 48,663
Land improvements............coooveiicinniiieniians 259,740 259,740
BUIAINES. 1 reeraeerireeereireeee e eree e see e et enoeeees 106,005 106,005
Office eQUIPMSHL..c.cvccree e rercecnen e ssss s rsnrsrennes 413,328 413,328
Total NONCUITENE ASSELS.....ceevreretesereisrmrsssecrmersrrnssresanesssnns - - 973,385 973,385
TOTAL ASSET S oot es e s anesreneean 768,969 996 1,425,626 2,195,591
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.................. 22,391 22,391
Accrued claims payable 480,000 480,000
Due to other funds......ocovoeeeeeveeceeeeeee e 566 566
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ... oot ss e 480,560 - 22391 502,957
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital 48SE15. . sesn e 973,385 973,385
L8513 £y 1]« O 288,403 996 429,850 719,249
TOTAL NET ASSETS oot ees s snme s $ 288403 §$ 996 $ 1,403,235 § 1,692,634
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SCHEDULE 17
JTOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

WORKERS'
HEALTH COMPENSATICN MANAGEMENT
INSURANCE INSURANCE SERVICES TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:

PIEIIIUITIS ..ot et ren s $ 4,965,057 $ 319,820 3 $ 5,284,877

Charges for ServICes......ovveeeeieeceeceieecisinessesnien 566 579,080 579,646

SalES. ittt 35,734 35,734

Rental income......ooooooveoieeeeeeeeeicii 165,371 165,371

Contributions.......coooeeeeee. 270,000 270,000

L0 T SH OO U OO P U 11,584 11,584
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES........ccocvivinne 4,965,623 319,820 1,061,769 6,347,212
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Wages and fringe benefits....................... 86,819 117,616 204,435

AdMINISTAtIVE. .oveeieeeiee et 553,508 553,508

‘Medical claims.......cooeeeeieieeeeeeeec e 4,398,084 4,398,084

Workers' COmMPENSaAtioN......c.ccvecaverniinsenesissennes 320,047 320,047

Repairs & maintenance........... 156,243 156,243

Supplies, materials & remtals........ccevvemseersiinnnns 102,536 102,536

Software & related communication costs............ 10,000 113,087 123,087

PHODE ..ot cressr e ereses e 125,630 125,630

System support 68,807 68,807

Depreciation. .......coeceeeeeiecre e 161,421 161,421
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.........ccocvivienin 5,048,411 320,047 845,340 6,213,798
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......cvvviii ver e, (82,788) (227) 216,429 133,414
NONQPERATING REVENUES:

Investment inCOME. .. ... ... coeveever cee ver e 10,393 10,593
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS........... (72,195) (227) 216,429 144,007
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):

Transfers in.......c.ooovee e iee e 200,000 200,000 400,000

Transfers out.......cocooeee i in o, (28,522) (28,522)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).... 200,000 - 171,478 371,478
CHANGES INNET ASSETS.....ocoeiiieeiiiees 127,805 (227) 387,507 515,485
TOTAL NET ASSETS -JULY 1, 2004.....c0cccvvrenn 160,598 1,223 1,015,328 1,177,149
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2005................. 5 288,403 § 996 % 1,403,235 3 1,692,634
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

SCHEPULE 18

WORKERS'
HEALTH COMPENSATION MANAGEMENT
INSURANCE INSURANCE SERVICES TOTAL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Reccipts from customers.. s g $ 797,925 § 797,925

Premiums received... 4,948,948 333,444 5,282,392

Payments to vendors. (743,751) (332,448) (562,819) (1,639,018)

Paymenis for claims.... (4,398,084) (4,398,084)

Paymenis to employees......... ... (86,81 (117.616) (204,435)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES................ (279,706} 996 117,490 [161,220)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net transfers from other funds,., 200,000 171,478 371,478
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of capital 855648, .. .cocov ittt e e e e (211,806) (211,806}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Encome from IMVESIMENS. . ... .o i e e en et e e ee e e e e e 10,553 10,593
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS... ......... (69,113} 956 71,162 9,045
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1200 oo v e v 373,069 357,214 730,283
CASH AND CASH EQUEVALENTS - JUNE 30, 2005... ..o oot veenee vvmeeevees £ 303,956 S 996 3§ 434,376 3§ 739,328
RECONCILIATION TO BALANCE SHEET CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents perabove. ... ... ioe i e e 3 303,956 8 996 8§ 434376 3 739,328
Cash and cash equivalents reported a8 INVESIMENTS... ove e ive e ver e e e ver e e {303,856) (996) (434,376} {739.128)
BALANCE SHEET CASH. ..o oo e e o e e e e 3 - 3 - 3 - 5 -
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)... . 3 {82,788) & (227) % 216429 § 133,414
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) opcmtmg activities:
Depreciation. .. 161,421 161,421
Contribution for cc]l DWW .1t 1auvan amers ms s ams arsmre aneen anm ens ame sar ses ore ne {270,000) (270,000}
(Increasc) decrease in:
Agcounts receivable. .. oo i e {16,675) 13,624 5,156 3,105
Due from other funds.. (128,552) (128,552)
Other... (181) (181)
Increase (dccrcase) in:
Accounts payable... . - 3,665 3,665
Bue tomllcrﬁmds (51,691} (12,401) {64,092}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED [N) OPERATING ACTIVITIES......coocv s 5 {279,706) % 996 § 17490 3 (161,220)
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Fiduciary
Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity for individuals, private
organizations or other governments.

Postemplovment Healthcare Trust Fund

This fund is used to account for postemployment benefits of Locals 531 and 760 employees, certain nonunion
employees and public works employees.

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to report resources held by the reporting government in a purely custodial capacity (assets
equal liabilities).

Student Activities Fund

This fund is used to control various activities, as defined by State Statute, undertaken by students of the public
school system.

Celeron Square. Eastbrook Heights, Courtvard Associates, Ledgebrook,
Holinko Estates and Freedom Green Sewer Funds

These funds are used to ensure that the privately owned sewer systems are operated and maintained in accordance
with all applicable Federal, State and local regulations.

Dependent Care Fund

This fund is used to account for funds withheld from employees’ pay for the purpose of reimbursement of
dependent care expenses.

Uninsured Medical Costs Fund

This fund is used to account for funds withheld from employees’ pay for the purpose of reimbursement of
uninsured medical costs.

Mid-Neroc (Mid-Northeast Recycling Operating Committee)} Operating Fund

This fund is used to account for a regional household chemical waste facility located in the Town of Willington.

Mansfield Downtown Partnership

This fund is used to account for the funds from private businesses used for downtown revitalization efforts
Performance Bonds

This fund is used to account for the cash performance bonds the Town requires for various types of activities.



SCHEDULE 19
TOWN OF MANSFIELD. CONNECTICUT

AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2004 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2005
(AS RESTATED)
ASSETS
CASH:
Student activities fund.......c.cciiriircciiincninn. $ 59,466 § 116,226 § 127,876 % 47,816
INVESTMENTS:
Celeron square sewer fund..........coooeoieeneceeenee. 91,143 9,608 100,751
Eastbrook heights sewer fund...........ccoovverveveenne 96,371 3,891 100,262
Courtyard associates sewer fund .. 48,061 2,684 50,745
Ledgebrook sewer fund.........coccvveiivecicnccvennncs 56,393 5,178 61,571
Holinko estates sewer fund..........cocomvvrrrerreenes 19,844 2,007 21,851
Freedom green sewer fund.. 47,024 7,738 54,762
Dependent care fund........ 8,550 37,955 36,121 10,384
Uninsured medical costs fund 3,280 48,029 43,906 7,403
Mid-Neroc operating fund......... . 141,424 47,387 45,058 143,753
Mansfield downtown partnership..........ccocveeee. 47,752 47,752
TOTAL INVESTMENTS.....oooee e 512,090 212,229 125,085 599,234
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Dependent care fund..........c.ceeevviceieieieceene 1,080 76,572 77,602 50
Uninsured medical costs fund........................... 11,500 93,718 97,667 7.551
Mid-Neroc operating fund.........
Mansfield downtown partnership.. 900 900
TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE.......... 12,580 171,150 175,269 8,501
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS:
Performance bonds.........ccoeoiicinrcnsniienns 371,384 168,425 185,800 354,009
TOTAL ASSETS....o s remisnersensn 3 955,520 % 668,070 3 614,030 § 1,009,560
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
Student activities fund............cceierereieveriennae $ 59,466 $ 116,226 § 127,876 § 47,816
Performance bonds.........o i 371,384 168,425 185,800 354,009
Celeron square sewer fund " 91,143 9,608 100,751
Eastbrook heights sewer fund..........ccccoeevveeen 96,371 3,891 100,262
Courtyard associates sewer fund.................... 48,061 2,684 50,745
Ledgebrook sewer fund.............. 56,393 5,178 61,571
Holinko estates sewer fund.. 19,844 2,007 21,851
Freedom green sewer fund.. . 47,024 7,738 54,762
Dependent care fund.............coooniicicecn 9,630 114,527 113,723 10,434
Uninsured medical costs fund..........cocevvevnenne 14,780 141,747 141,573 14,954
Mid-Neroc operating fund.......... . 141,424 47,387 45,058 143,753
Mansfield downtown partnership......c..connne 48,287 48,287
TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE.............. 955,520 667,705 614,030 1,009,195
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS:
Mansfield downtown partaership.........ccooeec, 365 365
TOTAL ASSETS...ooeeeeeee et eneae e $ 055,520 § 668,070 § 614,030 % 1,009,560
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SCHEDULE 20

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE

JUNE 30, 2005 AND 2004
2005 2004
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land and 1and improvements. ..o oeeieenersrssnssscessssrsessrsssessnns 3 4,782,769 3 4,782,769
CONSIIUCLION 11 PIOBIESS. . aerrereerereressrrrcareorasssssesssassssmessaressmsssnsans 2,155,273 1,366,951
Buildings 32,727,850 32,727,850
Improvements other than buildings..........coceevccenencsrinececence. 382,839 382,839
Machinery, equipment and vehicles.....vmmnrreriree e e 4,344 485 3,965,819
INfTaStIUCIUTE. ...ecetveieiieecesieeten e e ee e seaeman s eeneemsereteenevreranee 46,963,229 46,738,229
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS....ccovuc.. b 91,356,445 3 89,904,457
INVESTMENT IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL
ASSETS BY SOURCE:
Property taXES. ..ot s s csns s csnss s e e renas s easn: 3 53,610,762 s 51,469,345
General obligation Bonds........cvveereernsiersiemiensssesiemes 24,167,442 25,967,861
Intergovernmental.... oot 12,973,341 11,872,433
CONEIBULIONS v cvecrererevrirernsirrrresrresesreresmsessmsee s sarae s esensasasseseas 604,900 654,818
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS............. 5 91,356,445 3 89,964,457

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital
assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital
assets of internal service funds are included as govenmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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SCHEDULE 22
TOWN OF MANSFIELD. CONNECTICUT

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2004 ADDITIONS DELETIONS JUNE 30, 2005
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
General GOVEIMIMENL...........co.o. oot vemres e et sees s seet s 3 2,367,713 § 4,310 % 3 2,372,023
Town manager 17,638 20,022 37,650
FRNANCE. ...ttt eeeee s e eeeee e enmene 52,063 52,063
TOTAL GENERAEL GOVERNMENT.......ocounicviiiiniininins 2,437,414 24,332 - 2,461,746
PUBLIC SAFETY:
CIVIL dEfenSe. ....vivei s creae s et st et b st ens 53,030 53,030
POlICE PrOTECHION. ... e eec e e e s e e v e 50,123 25,615 75,738
Fire PrOtCCHION. ..ot ee e e s emes e e 808,460 41,451 849,911
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY ...ooviieeiineee e 858,583 120,096 - 978,679
PUBLIC WORKS:
PUBIC WOTKS. ...t sre s ssrrs e 50,761,995 1,065,880 51,827,875
Building MAINIENANCE. .........c.oveeeveeeecer et eseeneseesseesenes 225 225
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS......coieeee e 50,762,220 1,065,880 - 51,828,100
COMMUNITY SERVICES:
BOCIAl SEMVICES. ....crvvivievierieerresnseseemses b esseseensssrassrets someraren 664,355 664,355
LIbrary ServiCes. ..o ieeceie oo cee e e e e e 2,787,597 469 2,787,128
RECTEALION. ..o v ittt ener e eare e e 11,038,857 40,719 11,079,576
DIAYCATE. ..o e v b 1,861,909 1,861,909
TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES....c.oveeeeeeeeeeene 16,352,718 40,719 469 16,392,968
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT........coi et 278,533 112,193 390,726
EBUCATION......coo ettt e st emeee e vee e e semes s emeresrrene 19,274,989 20,237 19,304,226
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS........ $ 89,964,457 § 1,392,457 § 469 § 91,356,445

This schedule presents only the capital asset batances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital
assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital
assets of internal service funds are included as govermental activities in the statement of nct assets.
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TABLE 1

JOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
LAST THREE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2005 2004 2003

Governmental activities:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....... s 62,880,466 § 61,779,841 $ 59,852,708

Restricted.......cooviir i e 3,612,577 840,920 2,809,552

Unrestricted... ..o e e 476,846 2,650,673 4,324,326
Total Governmental activities net assets................ 66,969,889 65,271,434 66,986,586
Business-type activities:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt... ... 871,322 925,951 851,464

Unrestricted.......ooevnviie e 301,106 416,974 473,154
Total Business-type activities net assets................ 1,172,428 1,342,925 1,324,618
Total Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....... 63,751,788 62,705,792 60,704,172

Restricted....ooviriiri i 3,612,577 840,920 2,809,552

Unrestricted.........ccooiiiiiiiii e 777,952 3,067,647 4,797,480
Total Net ASSEIS. .. vr i i i iraeiiravereises 3 68,142,317 $ 66,614,359 § 68311,204
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TABLE 2

(1of2)
TOWN OF MANSFIFLD, CONNECTICUT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST THREE YEARS
{UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR
2005 2004 2003
EXPENSES:
Governmental activities:
General BOVETTIMEN... .. vouvverr e v e rs s e st are see san e reeee s $ 2,538,107 3 2,417,854 3 2,626,803
Public SBIEtY. .. ..o ot oo ee e et et et e et e e et s e e e e 2,775,110 2,678,808 2,670,346
Public Works... ... .o e e e e 3,698,504 3,680,017 3,950,774
Community Services... ... .oovervuv e viees 4,886,361 4,412,130 2,681,113
Community development... ...t e e e s 328,078 303,910 290,611
BdUcation... ... .coooe oo e e e e e e e e e e e 26,431,915 26,897,222 24,757,645
INEErESE EXPENSE... 1t trtvis vitcrsars it et ses ves rn i e are enres ves rarers 282,086 276,633 413,621
Total Governmental activities eXpenses... ... .......ccviiis i verieeee 40,940,161 40,666,574 37,390,913
Business-type activities:
Sewer Department... ... .o oo oo i ce i vn vt sn rears s e s e e 153,202 152,480 166,831
Transfer Station .. .. ... e e e 1,264,101 1,108,927 1,138,943
Total Business-type activities eXpemtses... v v cvvnvenre veverssrnmvs vvens 1,417,303 1,261,407 1,305,774
TOTAL EXPENSES .. ...ttt e it s s e veevmres cee et vreas s e 42,357,464 41,927,981 38,696,687
PROGRAM REVENUES:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General BOVEIMMENL... ... .o iveees e v cet v cvn et e cee vrres ee een e 503,446 389,686 341,010
Public safety.............. 224,262 [79,162 24,040
Public WOTkS... ... vovvvs vre e e v e 753,717 518,020 538,157
Commnity services...... ... 1,722,586 1,466,428 481,356
Community development... ... 151,635 28,346 17,888
Education..........c.cccvvvvvsivs vn e 710,322 595,847 627,731
Operating grants and contributions........................... 10,706,110 10,954,571 10,303,99t
Capital grants and contributions... ....c.co v e iee e e 1,185,813 400,318 1,226,399
Total Governmental activities program revenues... ............ ... ... 15,957,891 14,532,378 14,060,572
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Sewer Department... ... cosvi veevvn s vr ae vae rt e res rre e rea e 178,000 178,000 178,000
Transfer Station.................. .o .. 994,830 1,064,008 1,101,497
Operating grants and contributions............... oo ees e e 191,819 33,181
Total Business-type activitics program revenues............ .. vee cvv e 1,364,649 1,275,189 1,279,497
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES... ... viv e v e 17,322,540 15,807,567 15,340,069
NET (EXPENSE)} REVENUE:
Governmental activities. . ... ..o e (24,982,270) (26,134,196) (23,330,341)
BUsiness-tyPe ACIVITIES. .. c.. vuv vt et envs eeeve cee vee vee e e areee e as (52,654) 13,782 (26,277)
TOTALNET EXPENSE. .. .. ... oot it et iee s s vt eee et ee v e aeee e s (25,034,924) {26,120,414) (23,356,618)
(Continued)
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TABLE 2
@of2)
TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT,

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST THREE YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

FISCAL YEAR

2005 2004 2004

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
Governmental activities:
General revenues:
PrOPET Y taXES. .. ooe e et oo et e e e s e e e e 3 18,524,910 5 17,559,957 s 15,779,448
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs... .. 7,756,083 6,582,212 6,769,550
Investment INCOMIE. .. ... .vuvsvervirvee in e oot ee e eee e e e e e 312,972 176,649 291,935
Miscellaneous. ...t e e e e e 86,760 100,226 37,318
Gain on sale of capital assets_.. ... ....._.......oorin i e 3,031
Transfers... ... .o cooioe e e e e e e (10,000)

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ... ... .o e 26,680,725 24,419,044 22,871,282

Business-type activities:
MISCELIANEOUS . .. ..o ittt e vir e e rs et e e e e e e e e e 2,157 4,525 5,544
TEANSTRTS. .. oo e e e e et et e e e e e 10,000

Total Business-type activities... ... ... ... oo s ve s i iis ee e cetin e e 2,157 4,525 15,544

TOTAL. . e s e et et et s et e s et e e e e 26,682,882 24,423,569 22,886,826

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
Governmental activities... ... ...l e e 1,698,455 (1,715,152) (439,059)
Business-type activities... ... ... o vurvercis cen e e e e e e e (50,497} 18,307 (10,733)

TOT AL it it b e e e e e e e e e e et e $ 1,647,938 $ (1.696,845) 3 (469,792)

{Concluded)
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TABLE 8

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
GRAND LIST OCTOBER 1, 2003
(UNAUDITED)
NATURE ASSESSED % OF
OF VALUE TAXABLE
TAXPAYER BUSINESS OCTOBER 1, 2003 GRAND LIST *
Connecticut Light & Power Public Utility $ 8,543,130 1.44%
Colenial BT LLC Colonial Apartments 4,861,203 0.82%
UCONN Co-op Retail 4,285,940 0.72%
Mansfield-Eastbrook Dev Corp Eastbrook Mall 4,039,980 0.68%
Glen Ridge Cooperative Housing Co-op 3,973,410 0.67%
New Samaritan Corp Medical Care Fac 3,932,950 0.66%
Campus Associates LP Nathan Hale Inn 3,791,580 1.64%
Celeren Square Assoc Apartments 3,645,880 0.61%
Orchard Acres Prop LLC Apartments 2,453,990 0.41%
Big Y Foods Inc. Personal Property 2,268,700 0.38%
TOTAL $ 41,796,763 7.03%

* Based on a Net Taxable Grand List for October 1, 2003 of $594,074,238.
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TABLE 9
JOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION
JUNE 30, 2005
(UNAUDITED}

TOTAL TAX COLLECTIONS (including interest and lien fees)

for the year ended JUNe 30, 2005.........ooveveeeeeieeieseeis et e teess s tstmsmssassms s s esse e s saneee e 3 18,380,231
REIMBURSEMENT FOR REVENUE 1.08S:
Tax relief for elderly freeze.. e, 2,771
BASE FOR DEBT LIMITATION COMPUTATION......ceceeeeeeceareenrns S 18,383,002
GENERAL URBAN PENSION
PURPOSE SCHOOLS SEWERS RENEWAL DEFICIT
DEBT LIMITATION:

2 1/4 times base.......ooeveevrecerrennee 3 41,361,755 s 3 $ 5
4 172 times base.... 82,723,509
3 3/4 times base.... 68,936,258
3 1/4 times base.... 59,744,757
3 times base 55,149,006
TOTAL DEBT LIMITATION...........occnunnee 41,361,755 82,723,509 68,936,258 59.744,757 55,149,006
INDEBETEDNESS:
Bonds payable............... 2,775,000 2,025,000
Town partion of Regional School
District No. 19 bonds payable - net............. 3,517,451
School building grants. ... ... {806,050)
NET INDEBTEDNESS (1).ceereucereeereveeereeeeneaeees 2,775,000 4,736,401 - - -
DEBT LIMITATION IN EXCESS
OF INDEBTEDNESS...... 5 38,586,755 $§ 77,987,108 3 68,936,258 $ 59,744,757 3 55.149.006
(1} The total of the above net indebtedness amounts to: $ 7,511,401
In no event shall total indebtedness exceed seven times the base for debt limitation computation: 3 128,681,014
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TABLE 10

RATIO OF DEBT TO GRAND LIST AND

DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
PERCENT
YEAR GROSS DEBT TO GROSS
ENDED ESTIMATED DEBT - END ASSESSED DEBT PER

JUNE 30, POPULATION(1) GRAND LIST (2) OF YEAR VALUE CAPITA
1996 19,624 $ 471,330,926 $ 3,637,512 0.77% $ 185
1997 19,500 481,645,090 7,917,754 1.64% 406
1998 19,350 490,206,418 6,982,065 1.42% 361
1999 20,000 495,721,014 8,346,376 1.68% 417
2000 20,720 505,885,526 7,410,688 1.46% 358
2001 21,000 512,226,781 8,805,000 1.72% 419
2002 22,000 537,747,140 7,715,000 1.43% 351
2003 23,700 555,647,065 6,540,000 1.18% 276
2004 25,000 585,736,365 5,780,000 0.99% 231
2005 25,200 594,074,238 4,800,000 0.81% 190

(1) Includes University of Connecticut dormitories and Bergin Correctional Center.

(2) The Grand List is as of October 1 of two years prior to year end (i.e., for 2004-05 the list is
as of October 1, 2003).
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TABLE 11

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
PAYMENTS TO REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 19
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
PERCENT OF
YEAR REGIONAL SCHOOL

ENDED DISTRICT NO. 19
JUNE 30, AMOUNT ASSESSMENT

1996 $ 4,230,978 55.0 %

1997 4,317,180 52.0 %

1998 4,668,708 54.60 %

1999 5,317,030 57.10 %

2000 5,556,219 53.99 %

2001 6,130,250 54.74 %

2002 6,600,509 55.32%

2003 7,143,856 56.28%

2004 7,429,902 55.48%

2005 7,728,080 54.12%
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TABLE 12

TOWN OF MANSFIELD. CONNECTICUT
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING INDEBTEDNESS
JUNE 30, 2005
(UNAUDITED)
PERCENTAGE MANSFIELD
DEBT APPLICABLE TO SHARE OF
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT OUTSTANDING MANSFIELD DEBT
Town of Mansfield $ 4,800,000 100.00% $ 4,800,000
Regional School
District No. 19 6,876,737 * 51.15% 3,517,451
Total direct and overlapping indebtedness 8,317,451
Less: School building grants (806,050)
Net Direct and Overlapping Indebtedness 5 7,511,401

* Debt is net of school grants receivable of approximately $16,099,136 and
includes $25,000 of debt reported in Town of Ashford general long-term obligations.
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TABLE 13

TOWN OF MANSKIELD. CONNECTICUT

RATIO OF DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES TO
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES - LEGAL BASIS

LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
TOTAL
YEAR GROSS GENERAL
ENDED DEBT GOVERNMENT
JTUNE 30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST SERVICE * EXPENDITURES * * PERCENT
1996 § 1,035,689 $§ 659,552 § 1,695,241 $ 22,520,758 7.53%
1997 1,050,689 587,586 1,638,275 23,223,332 7.05%
1998 743,839 417,489 1,161,328 23,826,587 4.87%
1999 710,689 582,869 1,293,558 25,462,958 5.08%
2000 710,689 479,003 1,185,692 27,724,090 4.29%
2001 880,689 392,723 1,273,412 28,768,868 4.43%
2002 865,000 447,352 1,312,352 30,184,366 4.35%
2003 950,000 398,975 1,348,975 31,061,554 4.34%
2004 1,065,000 284,440 1,349,440 32,522,045 4.15%
2005 980,000 261,507 1,241,507 34,702,002 3.58%

* Does not inciude credit fer Connecticut Department of Education school
building grants.

* % Total General Fund expenditures includes other financing uses.
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TABLE 14

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
SEWER ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
SPECIAL SPECIAL
YEAR ENDED ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT PERCENTAGE
JUNE 30, BILLINGS COLLECTED * COLLECTED
1996 $ 2016 $ 2,016 100%
1997 2,906 2,906 100%
1998 4,000 4,000 100%
1999 2,800 2,800 100%
2000 3,600 3,600 100%
2001 4,000 4,000 100%
2002 8,069 8,069 100%
2003 4,296 4,296 100%
2004 4,000 4,000 100%
2005 4,400 4,400 100%

* Includes prepayments.
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TABLE 16

TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
JUNE 30, 2005
(UNAUDITED)

Incorporated: 1702

Form of Government: Council/Manager, Town Meeting

Area: 45.1 square miles Education:

Miles of streets 104.82 Number of schools 4
Number of certified
staff (equivalent
full-time) 143.7

Building permits

(residential): Student enrollment:
Permits issued 352 Elementary 1,305
Estimated costs $16,327,040 High school 673
Fire protection;
Number of stations 3
Number of firemen: Election:
Volunteers 60 Registered voters 10,058
Equivalent full-time 20
Population:

Police protection: 1960 (census) 14,638
Number of stations 1 1970 (census) 19,994
Number of employees 1980 (census) 20,634

(equiv. full-time) 6.0 1990 (census) 21,103
1999-00 (census) 20,720

Parks and Recreation: 2000-01 (estimate) 21,000

Number of park facilities & 2001-02 (estimate) 22,000

open $pace preserves 13 2002-03 (estimate) 23,700
Acres of land 1,938 2003-04 (estimate) 25,000
Programs 894 2004-05 (estimate) 25,200
Participants 10,689

Number of paid employees:
Sanitary sewers: (including schools)

Miles of sewers 4.15 Equivalent full-
Pump stations 1 time positions 395.1
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

FEDERAL STATE
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA PROJECT
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
LLS. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through State Department of Administrative

Services:

Food DOnation...........cmemeimim s 10.550 5 39,391
Passed through State Department of Education:

School Breakfast Program..... 10.553 17,058

National Scheol Lunch Program.. 10.555 84,556

Special Milk Program for Children...........co.coeveveerceceereerennn. 10.556 1,042

Child and Adult Care Food PIogram............c..oceeeeeeeeeeeveeecenne. 10.558 29,051

Direct Program:

Rural Business Enterprise Grants..........c.cooevreeeeeereeececeenene 10.769 59,989
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE..................... 231,087
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND

URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Passed through State Department of Economic and
Community Development:
Community Development Block Grants/State’s
PIOTAM. .. ceoi it e e e e e e 14.228 2002-078-001-052-001A 156,931
Community Development Block Grants/State's
PROBLAINL .. ceecis et e e et e e e 14.228 2002-078-002-052-001A 9,935
Community Development Block Grants/State's
PROBIAML. ... 0evve e s 14.228 2002-078-004-052-001A 95,206
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT .......coooiiiiii i e 262,072
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR:
Direct Program:
Recreation Resource Management..........cccococveeieerereincnnanes 15.225 2,460
1.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION;
Passed through State Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction. .......cccocooeveerevvrvenns 20.205 278,397
Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention
INEEntive GIants..... ..o overrerm e eecer v rereseverers s reres 20.601 6,900
TOTAL U.S. DERPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.............. 285,297
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Passed through State Department of Envirenmental Protection:
Surveys, Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants 66.606 12060-20296-0000-2024-000 8,000

(Continued)

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONCLUDED)

FEDERAL STATE

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA PROJECT

GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES

1.8. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:

Passed through State Department of Education:

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 12060-20679-82070-2004-170002-SDECCO0S  § 2,000
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies, 84.010 12060-20679-82070-2005-170002-SDEOC005 142,256
Special Education - Grants to States....... 834.027 12060-20977-82032-2004-170002 500
Special Education - Grants to States... 84.027 12060-20977-82032-2005-170002 231,733
Special Education - Preschool Grants...., 84.173 12060-20983-82032-2004-170002 5,599
Special Education - Preschool Grants 34,173 12060-20983-82032-2005-170002 15,244
Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities -

State Grants............c.... et seienan et et 84.186 12060-20873-84131-2003- 170002 805
Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities -

State Grants................ 34.186 12060-20873-84131-2004-170002 5,936
Safe and Drug-free Schools and Communities -

State Grants..... 24.186 12060-20873-84131-2005-170002 1,885
Innovative Education Program Strategies... 84.298 12060-20909-84131-2003-170002 699
Innovative Education Program Strategies... 34.298 12060-20909-84131-2004-170002 12,453
Innevative Education Program Strategies... 84.298 12060-20909-84131-2005-170002 4,007
Education Technology State Grans.,,, 84.318 12060-20826-82079-2003-170003-SDE00005 238
Education Technology State Grants. 84.318 12060-20826-82079-2005-170003-SDE0000S 11,144
Education Technology State Grants. 84.318 120:60-20826-82079-2003-170003-SDE0000S 7,970
Education Technology State Granis.... 84.318 12060-20826-82079-2004-170002 1,445
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants. 84.367 £2060-20858-84131-2004-170002 3,734
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants.... 84.367 12060-20858-84131-2005-170002 45,937

TOTAL 1J.8. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION...cccovninainiicnns 493,585
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HIIMAN
SERVICES:
Passed through State Department of Social Services:
Social Services Block Grant........ccocvvnsvsmreeresensnssinens 93.667 931
Passed through Northeast Communities Against
Substance Abuse Inc.:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment
Of SubStANCE ABUSE....ccoreeeeceeeeeeecemee e 93.959 3,300
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES b 4,231
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through State Office of Policy and Management:
Public Assistance Grants............ 97.036 23,695
Passed through State Department of Military:
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 16,436
Assistance to Firefighters Grant..........cooo i vin e cee e e 97.044 162,582
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY........ 202,713
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS........cooererrvmarirnnmrsrensssssss s s 1,489,445
{Concluded)

See notes 10 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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TOWN OF MANSKFIELD, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAIL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
The following is a summary of the more significant policy relating to federal awards:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the
Town and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting and a cumrent financial resources
measurement focus. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments. and Non-profit Organizations.

NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS

The Town received and expended $39,391 of USDA donated commodities under the Federal Food
Distribution Program.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

e There were no prior year audit findings or questioned costs.
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TOWN OF MANSKFTELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

I - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X 1o
Reportable condition(s) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X __none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X _no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? ves X__1no
Reportable condition(s) identified
not considered to be material weakness(es)? ves X none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? yes X_ no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA NUMBER NAME OF FEDERAI PROGRAM
14.228 Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: b 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X ves no

11— FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None

I0 - FEDERAT AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None
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Pond View Corparate Center

OSTIN 76 Batterson Park Road
) Farmington * New London . Farmington, CT 06032
Springfield, MA .
UFFKESS Main Line:  {860) 678-6000

: Toll Free:  (800)286-KRCO
& COMPANY, LLC : SRl (860) 678-6 110

Business Advisars and Certified Public Accountants . Web: www.kostin.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAIL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Town Council
Town of Mansfield, Connecticut

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated November 16, 2005. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial
staternents and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation
of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively fow level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the
internal controls over financial reporting, which we have reported to management in a separate letter dated
November 16, 2005.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under

Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Town Council, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those

specified,parties. T
%ﬂ,ﬁ/y{, @%)é&w ?'QW’ ae

Farmington, Connecticut
November 16, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAI CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Town Council
Town of Mansfield, Connecticut

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2005. The
Town’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of audit results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Town’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
‘Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the
design or operatjon of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level
the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants caused by
error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weakmesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated November 16,
2005. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Town Council, federal awarding

agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those
specified parties.

Zyl/&i};u, W ?'éb?aﬁ?/) see

Farmington, Connecticut
November 16, 2005
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

STATE GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

STATE GRANT
PROGRAM
IDENTIFICATION
NUMBER

STATE
PROJECT
NUMBER

EXPENDITURES

OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT :
Local Capital Improvement Program
Property Tax Relief for Elderly and

Totally Disabled Homeowners...
Property Tax Relief for Elderly Homcnwners -

Freeze Program.... .
Property Tax Relief for Veterans
Property Tax Relief for Manufacturing Machinery

and Equipment and Commercial Vehicles. ....ovvveevririveannnns

STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION :
Child Nutrition Prog'ram (School Lunch State Match)
Health Services...
School Breakfast...
School Breakfast...
Youth Services Bureau

STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION :
Town Aid Road Grants Transportation Fund.....

CONNECTICUT STATE LIBRARY :
State Grants to Public Libraries.
Connecticard. ..
Historical Prcserva:mn Gra.nt

STATE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES ;
Child DAY CALE (CDC).e.ooors oo e mmreeeresssmneessssssssmsesssesions

STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION:
Landfill Closure Grant

OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER:
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) on
State-Owned Property
Boat Grant... -
Masha.mucket chuob’Mohegan Fund

STATE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC AND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT :

Payment in Licu of Taxes (PILOT).... "
Small Town Economic Assistance Program (STEAP)....

TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BEFORE
EXEMPT PROGRAMS. ...

EXEMPT PROGRAMS:

STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Public School Transporation.........ce.e. e verererescemennnes
Education Cost Sharing,... . -
Special Education - Agency Placemcm and Excess Cosls
School Construction Projects - Princigral |
School Construction Projects - Interest

TOTAL EXEMPT PROGRAMS ...ttt e ecmeneenas

TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE....

12050-0PM20600-40254
11000-0OPM20600-17018

11000-0PM20600-17021
11000-OPM20600-17024

11000-OPM20600-17031

11000-SDE64000-16072
11000-SDE64000-17034
11000-SDE64000-17046
11000-SDEG4000-17046
11000-SDE64000-17052

12001-DQT57000-17036

11000-CSL66051-17003
11000-CSL66051-17010
12060-CSL66091-35150

11000-DSS60000-17022

55050-12052-43930-63011-40518

11000-05C15910-17004
12027-0SCi5910-40251
12009-08C15910-17005

11000-ECD46400-17012-03%
12052-ECD46000-42411-075

11000-SDEG4000-17027
11000-SDE64000-17041
11000-SDEG4000-17047
13010-SDE64000-40901
13009-SDEG4000-40896

11000-16072-82051-2004-170005

11000-17034-82010-2005-170006
11000-17046-82057-2005
11000-17046-82058-2005

11000-17052-82079-2005-170002

11000-17027-82010-2005-170005
11000-17041-82010-2005-170002
1 1000-17047-820F 6-2005
13010-40901-82003-2005-170001
13009-40896-82004-20035-170063

See note to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
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5 170,159
34,164

2,771
4,467

8,274

6,106
13,600
3,000
376
16,295

115,124

2,538
12,261
7,000

222,281

191,819

6,343,658
2,503
1,339,206

18,581
58,991

8,573,174

239,570
8,522,648
7,567
296,025
70,362

9,136,172

S 1779346




TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The
following is the significant policy relating to state financial assistance.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance is presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting and a current financial resources measurement focus.

The Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, contained in this report, is prepared based on
regulations established by the State of Connecticut Office of Policy and Management. In accordance with these
regulations (Section 4-236-5), certain grants are not dependent on expenditure activity and, accordingly, are
considered to be expended in the fiscal year of receipt. These grant program receipts are reflected in the
expenditures column of the Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance.
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TOWN OF MANSFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

¢ There were no prior year audit findings or questioned costs.
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TOWN OF MANSFIFLD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? ves X no
Reportable condition(s) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes x__mone reported
Noncormpliance material to financial statements noted? yes X 1o

State Financial Assistance

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X__ho
Reportable condition(s) identified
not considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X __none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
Section 4-236-24 of the
Regulations to the State Single Audit Act? yes X no

The following schedule reflects the major programs included in the audit:

State Grant Program

State Grantor and Program Identification Number Expenditures
OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT:
Local Capital Improvement Program............cccevenee. 12050-CPM20600-40254 3 170,159
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Town Aid Road Grants Transportation Fund............ 12001-DOT57000-17036 115,124
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES:
Child Day Care (CDC)..cvvivieiiiiiriie i vesarssnssees 11000-DSS60000-17022 222281
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION:
Landfill Closure Grant ..........ccccenvevverrenrieiereiinioses s 555050-12052-43930-63011-40518 191,819

OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER:
Payment in Liez of Taxes (PILOT)
on State-Owned Property .........c.coovverercrererereecenennnene 11000-0SC15910-17004 6,343,658
Mashantucket Pequot/Mohegan Fund....................... 12009-05C15910-17005 1,339,206
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TOWN OF MANSFIEELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

II. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED UNDER
GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

e We issued our report dated November 16, 2005, on internal control over financial reporting and on
compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

e OQur report on compliance indicated no reportable instances of noncompliance.

e Qurreport on internal control over financial reporting indicated no reportable conditions.

11T. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

e No findings or questioned costs are reported relating to State Financial Assistance Programs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Town Council
Town of Mansfield, Connecticut

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon dated November 16, 2005. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plamning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the basic financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control. Our consideration
of the internal contro! over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively
low level the risk that misstatements cased by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period
by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving the internal controls over financial reporting,
which we have reported to management in a separate letter dated November 16, 2005.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s basic financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Town Council, the
Office of Policy and Management, and state awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

Loctiio, Kogfhas§ oy, e

Farmington, Connecticut
November 16, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPILIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM, ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT ACT AND ON THE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Town Council
Town of Mansfield, Connecticut

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Mansfield, Connecticut, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Office of Policy and Management Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2005. The major state programs
are identified in the summary of audit results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to each of its major state programs is the responsibility of the Town’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Stafe Single Audit Act (C.G.S.
Sections 4-230 to 4-236). Those standards and the State Single Audit Act require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Mansfield’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination on the Town’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to state programs,
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Single Audit Act.
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a mnajor state program
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the intemal control over compliance
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 16, 2005. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
the State Single Audit Act and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Town Council, the
Office of Policy and Management, and state awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

Liatiie, Kigfhass 3 ooy, e

Farmington, Connecticut
November 16, 2005
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